Annual Report
4

2019

Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited

SHERERERAE]

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability ’
RESESEMAZZERAF
Stock Code B&34X5% : 1008




Contents
B &%

Corporate information

NEER

Chairman’s statement

TRMES

Management discussion and analysis
BIRE S kT

Profile of directors and senior management
EENEREEBERE

Report of the directors

EEgWmEE

Corporate governance report

TEELRRES

Independent auditor’s report

B AZ AR

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

fre B ME M EmRaTRE

Consolidated statement of financial position

iR e IR R R

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

rAEDRER

Consolidated statement of cash flows
,vT =) EEJE/ALE%%

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fre AR

Five years financial summary

TEMHHE

This Annual Report is printed on environmental friendly paper
Ok B AR R AR

15

21

35

49

57

59

62

64

68

243



Corporate information

NEEF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman)
(resigned on 31 March 2020)

Mr. Qin Song (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang
(appointed on 12 March 2019 and
re-designated as Chairman on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Chen Huapei (resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Huang Wanru
(appointed on 31 March 2020)
Ms. Zheng Jinghui
(appointed on 31 March 2020)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Li Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. Lui Tin Nang

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chung Tat Hung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lui Tin Nang (chairman of the audit committee)
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

Ms. Li Li

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy
(chairman of the remuneration committee)
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon
Mr. Lui Tin Nang
Mr. Chen Huapei
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
Ms. Li Li
Mr. Huang Wanru
(appointed on 31 March 2020)

5=

HITES

HEERAXE (XE)
(R=ZZF_TF=-A=1+—HED)

YRS (BIEEFRITEARE)
RRR KL
(RZZE-NF=ZAT-_REZE"

BR-_ZE_ZF=A=1T—HFEEE)
REERE (N -_FTF=_A=1T—HEHD)

EBINEE
(RZZE_ZF=A=+—HEZT)
LI S
(R—ZE-_ZF=A=+—HEZT)

FUITES
FHI 2L+

BAFHITES
MEIR S
Reefek
RXZELE

DEWE
BEBEE

BRERS

RS E (BRZAGLTE)
PR S

XSS

FHIZ L

FMEEE
MR A
(FHZE2E/E)
BYREE
PN e
BREELT S A&
(W—E-ZTF=A=1+—HEF)
TR+
BEBINLE
(R—ZE-_ZTF=ZA=1+—HEZMT)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Corporate information

NE)EF

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon
(chairman of the nomination committeg)
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. Lui Tin Nang
Mr. Qin Song
Ms. Li Li

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Huapei
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Chung Tat Hung
Mr. Huang Wanru
(appointed on 31 March 2020)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road

P. O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

REZEE
WXL
(BREZEEESE)

MEER 52
ZPN:

/L 3

FRIZE

REARR

PREELT A
(RZZEZZEF=A=1+—HET)

EERLE

=EESLAE
(R—ZE-ZF=F=+—HEZEF)

BB B
E) « MR GFTEIT

FEERRIT
BERITERAF

hERTT (BE) BRDA
BELSELRITERAA

o R ER 1T (M) B A PR A

ROBFERECRE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

BERDBFERIRE

BEBSFELERAA
BB
ERFRNER1835
AR L5412

SR

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]



4

Corporate information
ANEEHR

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1201A, 12/F

Capital Centre

151 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.bcghk.cn

STOCK CODE
1008

LISTING DATE
30 March 2009

RBREBTEEXME

BE

Eif
HELTITE1515%
BRI

121 1201AE

DA

www.bcghk.cn

BRAD SR
1008

LA
—FEAE=A=1A

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
achieved revenue of approximately HK$1,495.8 million with
profit attributable to owners amounting to approximately
HK$175.9 million and basic earnings per share of
approximately HK11 cents.

In 2019, global growth recorded its weakest pace since the
global financial crisis a decade ago, reflecting common
influences across countries. The year was haunted with
vengeful lifts on tariffs and painstaking trade talks between US
and China, the world’s two biggest economies. Trade conflicts
and associated uncertainty has taken a brief break in
December after phase one of the trade deal was agreed and
central banks racing for reversal of monetary policy back to
quantitative easing. Despite the trade war and other economic
headwinds, China managed to meet the growth rate of 6.1%
in the year of 2019. Meanwhile, signs of economic challenge
became more visible in term of falling profit in manufacturing
sector and over gearing in finance sector. It was also
comparatively a quiet year of major economic reforms by
Chinese government except for the cut on value-added tax
(VAT) rates and increased the scope of VAT deductions in
order to boost consumption and stimulate economy.

After years of destocking, the production and sales of China
cigarette industry showed exciting exuberance in the first
quarter with steady cool-off for the remaining months, resulting
in a low single-digit annual growth in quantity. This was
consistent with China National Tobacco Corporation’s strategy
to balance between reasonable sustainable growth, tight
balance and quantity control. On the other hand, the industry
has recorded a historic high tax contribution to the
government. During the year, the industry in general was
marked with enhancement in product mix into high tier product
and rapidly growing importance of cigarette of various size,
length and features.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

Printing and Manufacturing of Cigarette Package and
Related Materials

The Group’s cigarette package business has recorded a
restorative growth during the year mainly in terms of business
volume from the conventional cigarette package direct
customers. The Company has proved its ability to outlive the
continuous price pressure brought by mandatory tendering
system and achieved improved profitability across all product
tiers with simultaneous volume increase. The strategic vertical
integration into package materials manufacturing has
successfully helped lower the core costs within the supply
chain which not only enhanced the Company’s position in the
tendering process on one hand but also reached into the
business opportunities and markets untouched before on the
other.

Manufacturing of Laminated Papers
The short-term decrease in business volume with major local
customer has dampened the profitability in this segment.

Sales of RFID products

During the year, the profitability of RFID business has suffered
due to the shake-up of a major foreign customer and the new
retail project relating to unmanned stores and online shopping
has not progressed at an expected pace. The Group’s
maneuver into replacement geographical markets has yet to
yield better returns.

PROSPECTS

China has suffered deep economic damage from the
coronavirus pandemic. According to figures recently released
by the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS), retail sales of
consumer goods dropped 20.5% year on year in January and
February. Online sales of physical consumer goods increased
3%, accounting for about a fifth of overall retail sales. Industrial
production fell 13.5%, while fixed-asset investment fell 24.5%
in January-February, compared with 2019. The contraction in
January and February data implies negative first quarter GDP
growth. Analysts expect the government’s 6% GDP growth
target in 2020 be revised down significantly given domestic
economic disruptions and the risk of global recession.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

The National Bureau of Statistics also indicated that urban
unemployment rate in February jumped to 6.2%, the highest
since the official records were published. The Chinese
Government’s stern urge for maintaining employment in
addition to commitment to President Xi’s 2020 socio-
economic goal is expected to pervade various restorative
measures on the financial sector, fiscal policy, businesses
capital expenditure and consumer spending for the rest of the
year.

After an extended Lunar New Year holiday and the gradual
release of lockdowns in various China major cities after taming
of epidemic, the Company’s various major manufacturing
facilities in China, to a large extent, have resumed business
since mid-February gradually. The most affected Hubei
facilities have also become up and running again in mid-
March. Though the Group’s business in the first quarter of
2020 was inevitably affected, it is expected that the Group will
undergo a satisfactory catchup in the second quarter from the
conventional cigarette package market to cover up the lag in
the first quarter.

Amid the double challenge from pandemic and trade war, the
Group will keep striving for widening and deepening the
existing conventional cigarette direct market by expanding its
facilities in eastern and southern China for boutique package
printing which has been on rapid growth in cigarette package
market while also extrapolating these facilities into the other
non-cigarette package arena.

It is the Group’s corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to equip the Group with
growth momentum, to diversify its operations internationally
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
diversifying into other profitable business as long as it is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seek investment
and business opportunities with a view to achieving a
sustainable growth, increasing profitability and ultimately
maximising the return to the shareholders of the Company.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

APPRECIATION ESE

On behalf of the Group, | would also like to take this ZHRATE#ZGKERRAERHEZS -
opportunity to express my gratitude to our customers, FEBEEHEHYE -EELANEEUN
suppliers and shareholders for their continuing support, my & THEBFEHTIERRME ©

fellow directors for their guidance as well as our staff for their

dedication and hard work.

Cai Xiao Ming, David £z
Chairman *E
30 March 2020 —E-ZF=F=+H
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENmR DN

REVENUE

During the year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,495.8 million (2018: HK$1,366.8 million), which
represents an increase of approximately HK$129.1 million or
9.4% as compared with 2018. The revenues of our business
segment of (1) printing and manufacturing of cigarette package
and related materials increased by 10.5% to HK$1,366.7
million, (2) manufacturing of laminated papers decreased by
6.1% to HK$42.0 million, and (3) sales of RFID products
increased by 2.4% to HK$87.1 million.

The increase in revenue is mainly due to increase in business
volume as a result of restorative growth in China cigarette
package market partially offset by slight decrease in average
selling price during the year.

GROSS PROFIT

During the year, gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately HK$46.7 million or 15.5% to HK$347.7 million
as compared with 2018. The gross profit margin has increased
from 22.2% in 2018 to 23.2% in 2019. The gross profit
increase was mainly due to increase in business volume
brought by growth in China cigarette package market during
the year. The Group has successfully mitigated the sales price
pressure by tight control over production costs and have the
gross profit ratio improved.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased by HK$1.2 million as compared with
2018. The increase is primarily attributable to (i) increase in
government grant of HK$4.9 million; (i) decrease in processing
fee income of HK$2.2 million; (i) decrease in rental income of
HK$2.1 million due to lesser idle industrial premises.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

The net losses decreased by HK$40.3 million to HK$24.0
million. The decrease was mainly due to (i) decrease of
goodwill impairment losses by HK$33.0 million to HK$15
million due to downward adjustment of a cash-generating unit
(“CGU")’s business forecast and (i) absence of HK$8.5 million
losses on disposal of partial equity interest in an associate in
2018.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

The assumptions and estimates are the same as or similar to
those used in prior years and considered by the management
to be reasonable and supportable by reference to the historical
results save for the Xiangyang Jinfeihuan factory in Hubei
(“*CGUT").

For CGUS, the assumed gross profit margin has been adjusted
downward from 21% to 18% due to prudent estimation of
profitability of the subcontracting market which comprises
higher proportion of business in CUG3 than the remaining
group. These led to a further provision made for impairment
losses of HK$15 million in 2019. However, the newly awarded
tender of CGU3 is expected to yield a rising gross margin
gradually back to 20%. Such assumptions are considered
reasonable and supportable in view of encouraging orders on
hand as at 31 December 2019. The impairment provision
made on goodwill for CGUS is considered reasonable based
on the valuation by Jones Lang LaSalle, an independent
valuer.

The recoverable amounts of the remaining CGUs were
determined to be in excess of their respective carrying
amounts. The management believes that the reasonable and
supportable changes in the key assumptions would not cause
the recoverable amount to fall below the carrying value of the
respective CGUSs.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by HK$3.4
million to HK$57.0 million. Less marketing expenses has been
spent in promoting the application of RF technology and
services to the conventional cigarette customers during the
year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENSES

During the year, administrative expenses and other expenses
decreased by approximately HK$15.4 million or 15.1% to
HK$86.6 million. The decrease was primarily due to the (i)
decrease in legal expenses of HK$8.0 million; and (i) decrease
in staff costs of HK$7.1 million because of consolidation of
administration functions and cutback of entertainment
expenses.
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENmR DN

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs decreased by 13.6% to approximately HK$19.7
million. It was mainly due to repayment of bank borrowings
during the year.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates decreased by approximately
HK$9.9 million to HK$41.8 million during the year. The
decrease in net profit of our associates was mainly due to
decrease in business volume of the Group’s major associate,
namely Changde Goldroc Rotogravure Printing Co. (“Changde
Goldroc”) during the year when new tender did not come in full
fledge. Changde Goldroc is principally engaged in the
provision of cigarette printing package services. It has a
carrying value of HK$422.6 million, i.e. more than 5% of the
Group’s total assets of HK$3,647.2 million as at 31 December
2019. The Group beneficially owns RMB50,546,120 of its
registered capital, representing 31% of the total registered
capital of RMB163,052,000. The fair value of Changde
Goldroc as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$1,338.5 million. During the year, the Group received
dividend of HK$73.2 million from Changde Goldroc. The
Group holds the investment in Changde Goldroc for stable
earnings and dividend income in view of its stable business
with the local customer.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate of the Group increased from 21.2% to
24.0% in 2019. It was primarily due to absence of non-
assessable profit related to disposal of subsidiary in 2018.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by
3.8% or by HK$6.5 million to HK$175.9 million.
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, revenue was generated from three business
segments: (i) the printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials of approximately HK$1,366.7
million (2018: HK$1,236.9 million), (i) manufacturing of
laminated papers of approximately HK$42.0 million (2018:
HK$44.8 million), and (iii) sales of RFID products of
approximately HK$87.1 million (2018: HK$85.1 million). The
earnings from the printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials, manufacturing of laminated
papers and sales of RFID products was increased by 25.0%
to approximately HK$324.6 million (2018: HK$259.8 million),
decreased by 16.9% to approximately HK$8.6 million (2018:
HK$10.4 million) , and decreased by 56.9% to approximately
HK$7.2 million (2018: HK$16.6 million) respectively. Earnings
from the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials accounted for approximately 95.4% of the
total segment earnings before unallocated items.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and banking facilities. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had net current assets of HK$514.5 million
(2018: HK$287.1 million), while the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$201.2 million (2018: HK$355.6
million). As at 31 December 2019, the short-term interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$256.5
million (2018: HK$601.3 million). Carrying amounts of bank
deposits pledged by the Group to secure the bank borrowings
granted to the Group amounted to approximately HK$9.5
million (2018: HK$11.3 million). As at 31 December 2019, the
Group’s gearing ratio, represented by the amount of interest-
bearing borrowings divided by shareholders equity, was
reduced to 8.9% (as at 31 December 2018: 22.9%). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had capital commitments for
purchase of property, plant and equipment which amounted
to HK$95.5 million (2018: HK$67.1 million).
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENmR DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES
Save as disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements before, the Group did not provide any guarantees
to third party and had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
associated companies by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopted a prudent strategy towards the treasury
and funding policies, with strong emphasis on risk control and
transactions directly related to the Group’s principal business.
Funds, primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, are normally placed with banks in short or medium
term deposits for working capital of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation was mainly financed by funds
generated from its operations and borrowings. As at 31
December 2019, the borrowings were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and RMB, while the cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group’s turnover is
denominated in RMB, while its costs and expenses are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. In view of the
prevailing macro-economic environment and the volatile
foreign exchange market, the Group is exposed to the foreign
exchange rate risk. An exchange gain has arisen due to the
translation of functional currency of RMB to presentation
currency of Hong Kong dollar during the reporting period when
RMB depreciated against Hong Kong dollar. However, such
translation is a non-cash item in nature and has no practical
effect to our daily operation as majority of our revenue and
cost are all denominated in RMB. The Group will closely
monitor the volatility of foreign exchange rate and apply the
appropriate hedging strategy if necessary.

KRB ERER

B AT AR & BT SRR M RE S0 TR B A S -
RZE—NF+-A=+—H  FEELE
M= IRMEAER - TEEFEALA
BfE -

EAWBEER L EEE
BE-T-NG+-A=+—BILEE &
CEmETERNEARREEATNE
AUCBE S i I -

BB EER
AEBEYER M EBRRNEERKRE - B
HEECEERESARE T EZXHHARE
ERRS c ERTRBUARENETTAHE
HIBH A B R B ERIRITER
REBEEES -

BEXRE
AEENESEESTERALENELERS
LEE - R_ZE-NF+-_A=+—H {8
EXBUABTRARKEE  MAKERE
MR MREFERBUETBENETIAR
BitE - ARENEXBAAREE - M
HRA R EZAB TR AREE -
ZREEMRBRBERE RINET IS KE -
AREBAZINEERER - NREHRNAE
AW TREARE (DEEE) REET
2HEY) HRARELETHNERE
B AW EAAEELD TEIFREER
AHEREEVEERTE W HBHRNAR
DR A AARETHE - XEBEKZ
PIEEERIE TR MR - BR R E S R AR o

2019F F3 EREREBEERAF

13



14

Management discussion and analysis

SR B

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, assets with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$9.5 million (31 December 2018: HK$11.3
million) were pledged to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 6 (2018: 11) and
1,490 (2018: 1,315) full-time staff based in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively. The Group’s remuneration packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Group participates in a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ base salaries. The Group also made
contributions to provident funds, elderly insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and work-related injury
insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Xiao Ming, David (£ 8 85), aged 41, was appointed
as an executive Director on 18 December 2008. He was
re- designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from
31 October 2014 and is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. Mr. David Cai is a director of most
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. David Cai has more than 11
years of experience in the packaging and printing industry
gained from the management of the Group’s business. Mr.
David Cai joined the Group in January 2001 and resigned as
executive Director on 31 March 2020.

Mr. QIN Song (#{#3), aged 47, is an executive Director, the
Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Group with effect from 3 December 2015. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in May 2002, and worked, among other
positions, as the Office Administrator of the Group and General
Manager of various subsidiaries of the Company. Since
September 2005, Mr. Qin serves as the Deputy Director of the
market committee of the Company and since February 2006,
a Vice President of the Company. From May 2010 to October
2011, he also served as the General Manager of Bengbu
Jinhuangshan Rotogravure Printing Company Limited in
addition to his then existing duties. Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor’'s
degree in Economics and Management Administration.

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (FR#&X R ), aged 61, has over 20 years
of extensive experience in the property investment and
development industry. He was the Chairman of Merryearn
(Holdings) Limited (& 7 & iR & B A& R 2 7)) from 1985 to
1995. He has been the Chairman of a number of corporations
in mainland China, namely, Shenzhen Guangyin Building
Industry Co., Limited* (% JI| £ R KX B & % B R A 7)) since
1995; Shenzhen Hongta Industry Co., Limited* ((FJI|AT 5 & 2
A R~ &) since November 2002 (in which he has also been
acting as a general manager); Shenzhen Hongding Asset
Management Co., Limited* (R TAL R EEEEBR A A
since February 2010; and Shenzhen Hongding Property
Development Co., Limited* (&Y AL R EEMRZE B R AR
since June 2010. Mr. Chen is the father-in-law of Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board). Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 12 March 2019 and was re-designated as
Chairman with effect from 31 March 2020.
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Profile of directors and senior management

EENSNEEERERE

Mr. Chen Huapei (PREE3E), aged 45, has been appointed as the
Group’s Vice President since October 2018. With extensive
experience in financial audit management, Mr. Chen is
responsible for managing the financial and auditing systems of
the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in October 1997 and
has served in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has served
as the chief cost accountant at the Group’s Head Office,
finance manager of Bengbu Jinhuangshan Rotogravure
Printing Co., Limited, finance director of Shenzhen Kecai
Printing Co., Limited, deputy general manager of Changde
Goldroc Printing Co., Limited and assistant to Group’s CEO.
Mr. Chen graduated from Yangzhou University with a major in
economic information management and he is currently
pursuing a master’s degree at Xian University of Technology.
Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 9 November 2018 and resigned as executive
Director on 31 March 2020 to assume other roles within the
Group.

Mr. Huang Wanru (& & %01), aged 51, was appointed as a
vice president of the Group in October 2011 and resumed the
same position in March 2020 when he rejoined the Group after
brief departure from the Group in June 2018 for other business
engagements. With years of extensive working experience in
the finance field, Mr. Huang has been responsible for the
financial and management information system of the Group.
Since he joined the Group in May 1998, he has been serving in
various subsidiary companies of the Group in various roles
such as cost accounting, finance manager and finance
controller. Since March 2008, he has been appointed as the
financial controller of the Group Mr. Huang has been appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 31 March 2020.

Ms. Zheng Jinghui (E8E%£), aged 42, has been appointed
as a vice president of the Group since March 2016. She is
responsible for the management of the human resources and
office administration of the Group. Ms. Zheng graduated from
Beihang University specializing in computer application and
Zhejiang University specializing in human resources
management. She joined the Group in 2000 and has since
served in various roles such as information technology
manager, operations manager, human resources manager,
assistant to the chief executive officer and vice president of the
Group. Ms. Zheng has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 31 March 2020.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

Non-Executive Director

Ms. LI Li (Z2%]), aged 48, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 22 July 2015. Ms. Li is a Chairman of the board of
directors of Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. (K ERZRI £ H
i% 5 B BR A 7)) (“Masterwork” together with its subsidiaries,
the “Masterwork Group”), a company whose issued shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 300195).
She is also an executive director of certain subsidiaries of the
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Ming Xuan Investment
Limited Company* (K)ZZ &R EFR A F]). Ms. Liis qualified
as a senior economist in the People’s Republic of China. She
has extensive management experience in the printing and
packaging companies.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (#%J§), aged 55, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Lam is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, banking and finance sectors. Mr.
Lam is the Managing Consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam is an associate member of various
professional organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Lam is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and
Synertone Communication Corporation and Weiye Holdings
Limited, all of them are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam received his Master of
Professional Accounting and Master of Science in
E-commerce for Executives both from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

* The English names are not official names and are provided for
identification purpose only
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Profile of directors and senior management

EENSNEEERERE

Mr. LUI Tin Nang (& X §£), aged 62 was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009. Mr. Lui
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lui has a Bachelor degree in Science from
the University of Leeds, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bradford in United
Kingdom and a Postgraduate Diploma in insolvency from
HKICPA. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practicing),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He is also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountant, Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Australia and the Certified Tax
Adviser. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and business advisory.

Mr. SIU Man Ho, Simon (& X %), aged 46, is a practising
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in
1996 and is a partner of a Hong Kong law firm, namely Sit,
Fung, Kwong & Shum Solicitors. Mr. Siu is also a China
Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry of
Justice of the PRC. His areas of practice include corporate
finance, capital markets, securities, mergers and acquisitions,
joint ventures and general commercial matters. Mr. Siu is also
an independent non-executive director of Wai Yuen Tong
Medicine Holdings Limited (stock code 897), Shuang Yun
Holdings Limited (stock code 1706) and HKE Holdings Limited
(stock code 1726), all of which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Moreover, he was
appointed as the independent non-executive director of Weiye
Holdings Limited (stock code 1570) in March 2016 and
resigned from the position in December 2018. He also actively
participates in charitable and social services in Hong Kong. He
was previously appointed as the director of Hong Kong Pok Oi
Hospital. He is acting as the legal adviser for United Hearts
Youth Foundation and VQ Foundation as well as the school
manager of The Association of Directors and Former Directors
of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd. Leung Sing Tak College. He is also a
member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong
Province, the PRC. Mr. Siu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

* The English name is not an official name and is provided for
identification purpose only
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIANG Xiang Yu (¥ %£H#5), aged 64, is the General Manager
of Bengbu Jinhuangshan Rotogravure Printing Co., Limited.
He joined the Group in 1999 and has over 15 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry.

Mr. YAN Feng (& #), aged 62, is the Vice President of the
Group since March 2016 responsible for the Group
infrastructure advancement, equipment management and
investment, policy research and technology management. Mr.
Yan joined the Group in 2000 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry and he also has
experience in printing of books services. Between May 2000
to April 2001, he served as the design director and marketing
manager in the headquarter of the Group. Between November
2003 to November 2006, he served as Deputy General
Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Company
Limited (“Xiangfan Jinfeihuan”). Between April 2009 to May
2010, he served as the General Manager of the Group
responsible for the printing of paper products. Between
November 2010 to December 2012, he served as the Deputy
General Manager of CD Goldroc. Between May 2013 to March
2016, he served as General Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan.

Ms. Al Ping (X ) aged 45, joined the Group in July 2001
and has been appointed as the Group’s Vice President since
June 2018. With extensive experience in market development
and business management, Ms. Ai Ping is responsible for the
expansion of some of the Group’s business markets and
concurrently serves as the general manager of the subsidiary
Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Color Package Co., Ltd.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESREREEERE

Mr. CHUNG Tat Hung (#£3£78), aged 52, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chung had
worked in various companies as finance manager and
accounting manager, and was previously an accountant of an
international accounting firm. Mr. Chung joined the Group in
October 2003 until February 2013 and served as the Finance
Manager of the Group. He rejoined the Group in March 2014,
Mr. Chung is a fellow member of HKICPA and a certified
practicing accountant of Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants. Mr. Chung received his Master of Business
Administration jointly offered by the University of Sydney and the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2002 and Bachelor
of Commerce from the Australian National University in 1991.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the future development of the Group’s
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 5 to 8 of this annual report. Financial and
business performance analysis is disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to
14 and note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s results
and business can be found in notes 4, 41 to 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The PRC cigarette industry is closely monitored and controlled
by the PRC government and our customers are concentrated
on a limited number of state-owned cigarette manufacturers.
The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise shareholders, regulators,
customers, employees, local communities and business
partners etc. and we have maintained good and strong
business relationship with our customers through joint venture
and other co-operations. During the year ended 31 December,
2019 and up to the date of this annual report, we have
complied with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the
PRC that have a significant impact on the Group. Further
details about the environmental and social responsibility will be
published in separate report to be uploaded on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 57 to 58. The Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend for the year under review of HK19.13 cents per
share totaling approximately HK$299,936,330 to be payable
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members to the Company as at 24 June 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2020
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 1 June 2020 to 5 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2020 AGM, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and
appropriate transfer form(s) must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 29 May 2020.

For determining the entitlement to receive the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 22 June 2020 to 24 June 2020 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive
the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 19 June 2020.
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Report of the directors
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 59.8% of the Group’s
turnover and sales to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 28.8% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 27.0% of the
Group’s total purchases, and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 9.0% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interests in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$1,197 million.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last
five financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities
as at the end of the last five financial years is set out on pages
57 to 67.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 March 2009, the shareholders of the Company had
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was expired on 3 March 2019.

No option under the Share Option Scheme has been granted
by the Board and there was no outstanding option.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the date of this
report are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a provident fund scheme as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme was a defined contribution scheme and the
assets of the MPF Scheme were managed by a trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64
and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the
Group at 5% based on the staff’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$30,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefits were required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries.
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme are to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group’s cost for the schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$15,094,000 (2018: HK$14,096,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman)
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (appointed on 12 March 2019 and
re-designated as Chairman on 31 March 2020)

Mr. Chen Huapei (resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Huang Wanru (appointed on 31 March 2020)

Ms. Zheng Jinghui (appointed on 31 March 2020)

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. Li Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. Lui Tin Nang

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

According to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company but shall then be eligible for re-election.
According to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Details of the Directors subject to rotation and re-election are
contained in the circular despatched together with this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed by annual confirmation that he has complied
with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgement.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 15 to 20.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing
from 12 March 2019, and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party. Each of Mr. Huang Wanru and Ms.
Zheng Jinghui has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 31 March
2020, which may be terminated by serving 3 months’ notice in
advance by either party. Mr. Chen Huapei has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 November 2018, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice by either
party. Ms. Li Li has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 22 July 2015, and will continue thereafter until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party. Each of Mr. David Cai and Mr. Qin Song has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 30 March 2018 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon has renewed their appointment for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 30 March 2018.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the related party transactions entered into during the
year were disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as those disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below, these
related party transactions either did not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Save as the
transactions aforementioned, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director, an entity connected with a Director or the
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year, and there was no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained liability
insurance for Directors and officers throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the following Directors or the chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:
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The Company ¥/
Number of Approximate
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Name of Director Capacity shares held Position share capital
Frsim,/ HEBRTRE
EEpnE 5% HEROGHE #2 N e
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Interest of controlled corporation (note 1) 851,456,892 Long 54.3%
ZREERLE sl EE R (MEE1) S=Y
Mr. Qin Song Beneficial owner 15,321,062 Long 1.0%
IR A EnlEAA S=Y
Mr. Chen Huapei Beneficial owner 1,022,000 Long 0.07%
PREELF S 4 EnlEAA S=Y
Ms. Li Li Interest of controlled corporation 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
TR L RIEHLEE RS S=Y
Note: B

1. 274,325,278 shares are held by Profitcharm Limited and 577,131,614
shares are held by Sinorise International Limited, the entire issued share
capitals of them are wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming,
David.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed to have, interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

TERROERR HKRE

BARREERTIBITHRABRA  R-F
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Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Position capital
e, HEBITRAE
RREH M= 54 HEROHBE #®=E BABEA
Profitcharm Limited 1 Beneficial owner 274,325,278 Long 17.5%
BlmABRAF ERBEBA )
Sinorise International Limited 2 Beneficial owner 577,131,614 Long 36.8%
REBRFARQA ERBEBA )
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled 250,651,964 Long 16.0%
corporation
REREMBREERN AR AT Rzt EE )
Masterwork Machinery (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 250,651,964 Long 16.0%
REBROD (BE)BRRF EREBA )
Partners Group Holding AG Beneficial owner 103,555,231  Long 6.6%
Partners Group Holding AG EREBA e
Tianjin Dehou Investment Interest of controlled 103,555,231  Long 6.6%

Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
Tianjin Dehou Investment

corporation

R EE

iR

Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

Notes: MIaE

BIHARARANEBELEEEMAZIMNER
NA) AEEALESEERMS -

1. Profitcharm Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin 1.
Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Cai Xiao Ming, David.

IREBR AR AR AN REREZ R S
BRAR MEEALEI2EERHS -

2. Sinorise International Limited is a company incorporated in the British 2.
Virgin Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Transactions with Masterwork Group

On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into a master
sale and purchase agreement (the “Master Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Masterwork Group Co., Ltd (“Masterwork
Group”), pursuant to which the Group will () purchase post-
press and packaging machineries from Masterwork Group or
its subsidiaries and/or (i) sell old machineries, purchased from
Masterwork Group or otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its
subsidiaries and related services from time to time to/for a
term commencing on 1 January 2018 and expiring on 31
December 2020. The annual caps in relation to the purchase
of post-press and packaging machineries by the Company for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB50
million, RMB50 million and RMB50 million respectively. The
annual caps in relation to the sale of old machineries,
purchased from Masterwork Group or otherwise, to
Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and related services for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB10
million, RMB10 million and RMB10 million respectively.

There is no minimum sale and purchase amount under the
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Group is not
contractually bound to (i) purchase post-press and packaging
machineries from Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and/or
(i) sell old machineries, purchased from Masterwork Group or
otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries. The Group
is entitled to source such machineries from other suppliers or
dispose such old machineries to other purchasers. The post-
press and packaging machineries and related services to be
supplied by Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries to the Group
will be in accordance with the specifications provided by the
Group on a case by case basis. The old machineries to be
sold by the Group will be subject to acceptance by
Masterwork Group depending on the type, condition and price
of the old machineries to be decided on a case by case basis.
The exact quantity, specifications and price of the post-press
and packaging machineries and the old machineries,
settlement terms and date of delivery will be set out in the sale
and purchase orders to be issued by the Group to Masterwork
Group.
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The actual purchase amount incurred under the Master Sale
and Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$10.2 million. There was no sale
of old machinery to Masterwork Group during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Masterwork Group, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in 16.0% of the issued share capital of
the Company, is a connected person under the Listing Rules
and the transactions contemplated under the Master Sale and
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2017.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save for the “Purchase of printing and packing machineries”
during the year as shown in note 48(a) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, all other transactions as shown in note 48 are
continuing connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) inaccordance with Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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In addition, the Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements. Other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter
containing the conclusion in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above which is in compliance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 35 to 48.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

During 2015, the Company has been offered a four-year term
loan facility of HK$340,000,000 from a local bank, additional
term loan facilities from an existing local bank of HK$150
million and HK$83 million repayable within 4 and 6 years
respectively, and a revolving loan facilities of HK$170 million.
Such loan facilities have been renewed in 2019 with two term
loan facilities of HK$37,500,000 (repayable by 8 semi-annual
instalments commencing 6 months after drawdown with final
maturity in June 2020) and HK$45,714,285.84 (repayable by
84 monthly instalments commencing 1 month after drawdown
with final maturity in September 2022) respectively, and a
revolving loan facility of HK$250,000,000. As at the date of
this report, the two term loan facilities have been fully repaid.
The Company has undertaken, among other matters, that Mr.
Cai Xiao Ming, David shall maintain at least 50% beneficial
shareholding interest in the Company at all times during the life
of the above banking facilities (the “Undertaking”). The breach
of such Undertaking may result in the loan becoming
immediately due and repayable. Such Undertaking also exists
in other revolving banking facilities made available to the Group
from other banks in the total amount of HK$170 million.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited

Cai Xiao Ming, David
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as
to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
complied in general with the Code, except code provisions
A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the Code as Mr. Cai Xiao Ming David (the
executive Director) and Ms. Li Li (the non-executive Director)
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 June 2019 due to their other business
engagement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring the performance of the senior
management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including four executive Directors namely Mr. Cai
Xiao Ming, David, Mr. Qin Song, Mr. Chen Xiao Liang and Mr.
Chen Huapei, one non- executive Director namely Ms. Li Li,
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon. Save and except that Mr. Chen Xiao Liang is the
father-in-law of Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among the Directors. The names and biographical details of
the Directors are set in the section entitled “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. Pursuant to
paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, each of
the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed by
annual confirmation that he has complied with the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Directors consider that all three independent non-
executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgement. Amongst the three independent non-
executive Directors, both Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy and Mr.
Lui Tin Nang have the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Seven Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2019. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened if
necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
Board meeting was sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

All relevant materials were sent to all the Directors relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Details of individual attendance of Directors
are set out in the table on page 44 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with the Company for a specific
term of two or three years. All of their appointments are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All of the independent non-executive Directors and the non-
executive Director were appointed for a term of three years,
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination
Committee but the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors of the Company rests with the entire
Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, among other things, the following criteria will be
considered:

e  Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

° Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board will evaluate the
candidates based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidates are qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee will also consider recommendations for
candidates made by shareholders of the Company.
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Regular reviews will be conducted by the Nomination
Committee on the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the policy on nomination of Directors of the
Company and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, Mr. David Cai was the Chairman
who provided leadership to the Board but he would not be
involved in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. Mr. Qin Song is the Vice-Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and his role is to oversee the
overall management of the Group.

Training for Directors

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The
Company provides Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training
undergone by each of them.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules and other
corporate governance requirements with written materials.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. All Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records in compliance
with Code A.6.5 of the Code.
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Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received
during the year:

Name of Directors

EEfR

RER  BEFMEIHFIIBEDT

Type of trainings
o] ki

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David

BEERR L&

Mr. Qin Song

IR HE

Mr. Peng Guoyi (resigned on 9 November 2018)
THEXE(RZZE-—NF+—ANBET)
Ms. Li Li

FHRL LT

Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

MREIR &

Mr. Lui Ting Nang

EPN: e

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

BMYEEE

A attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
environmental protection business or director’s duties and
responsibilities etc.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

Remuneration bands

A&B
Ak B

A&B
A KB
A&B
Ak B
A&B
AN B
A&B
A KB

A HRERE & TEY WiE

B: MEAWLE RREREBAEFBESHERE -
BT R E AR

BEERGREEEBTM
BE_ZE-NWF+_A=+—"BIFESHK
EIEBMEENAER T

Number of persons

A8 Bl AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 12
&% # 1,000,000 & 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
1,000,001 /B 7TZE 2,000,000 /&7

Above HK$2,000,001 NIL
2,000,001 AT £ L

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Chung Tat
Hung was the company secretary of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company reports to the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Chung has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee which consists
of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li, and
Mr. Lui Tin Nang is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other
matters, to review and monitor the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management of the Group, and to
report to the Board on matters relating to the corporate
governance as stated in the Code. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
has reviewed, among other matters, the Company’s financial
statements and the Group’s combined financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group. The Board
has not taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee
regarding the selections, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March
2009. The Remuneration Committee consists of five members
(including the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr.
Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-executive Director, namely Ms.
Li Li and Mr. Chen Huapei, an executive Director whose role
has been replaced by Mr. Huang Wanru with effect from 31
March 2020) and Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy was the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, among other matters, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive Directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March 2009. The
Nomination Committee consists of five members (including the
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and Mr.
Qin Song, an executive Director) and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other matters,
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. According to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Nomination Committee, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
and discussed and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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Attendance of meetings ERLEEXRE

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Board #HZE-Z—AF+-_A=+—HIFE &
Committees meetings and general meetings during the year EEREEE€E€# ZEE=LEeexzNMRE
ended 31 December 2019 was as follows: AREWHFEBREAT :

Attendance out of number of meetings

HHERMANLRERE

Annual

general

Audit Remuneration Nomination meeting

Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee (Note 1)

BRRBEAE

EEfE EZg ENZEE ¥FMHZEEE REZEE GERD

Executive Directors HITEE

Cai Xiao Ming, David BB (TE)

(Chairman) 27 - - - 0/
Qin Song /4N 7 - - 2/2 11
Chen Huapei P 1/7 - 2/2 - 1/1
Chen Xiao Liang (appointed R R

on 12 March 2019) (R=Z—-N&

“A+-RE

Zff) 2/5 - - - 11
Non-Executive Director FHITEE
LiLi &3] /7 212 212 212 01
Independlent Non-Executive BV 3877 E

Directors
Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEE 7 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Lui Tin Nang EPN:IZ 6/7 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Siu Man Ho, Simon BXR 77 2/2 22 22 1/1
Note: BiE
1. The annual general meeting was held on 5 June 2019. 1. PEBAFEAGR - E—NESNATBEETo
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FINANCIAL REPORTING, INTERNAL CONTROL
AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies and statutory requirements have been consistently
complied with. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

External Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fee paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$4.4 million, all for statutory audit services.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been
designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The Group has an internal audit department
primarily responsible for reviewing the internal control function
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) to review the
internal control system. Improvements in internal control and
risk management measures as recommended were adopted.
Based on the findings from Deloitte, the Board considers that
the internal control system is effective and adequate for the
Group as a whole.

MB®RE - AMEEREAREE

M E
EERREREARARAEENT KR
& o ARBIERBEMBEHEE - CRAER
MBREER - YEFENEE NS HBR
KNER - BB NREBBRRNF RN
RERRE T - IR R EA LB
HRHE - WERFL S ERBER A -

SNEBAX B ED
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HILtEE #
EEBEZREEN B AR R INEZERED
# & FA#)4 4,400,000 /8 7T °

M EpEE

EFESRAAKENABEE - et EER
R e AABIERAEF - BERRTEEN
SRFRCE - WERFEASENMBEER - AH
MBS TIEN 1T - IR & HHERDA
2 RAUREG - NEBRBEANBEZS
F TRREFEMNAKENAIBEIEINGE

BHE_ZT-NF+-_RA=+—HILFE K
SECZERDMERT TR
B ) RHAAMEIEHE - AEECRAEH
PR H A BR ER 1 i N AL B IR 7 - R
EEHEANER  EEER /AN AR
HERAEEERME DERETR °
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Risk management

The Board is also responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
reviewed the risk management system. The Board considers
that the risk management system is effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no issue relating
to the material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, of the
Group; and (i) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
qualifications and experience, resources and budget of its
accounting and financial reporting function, and adequate
training programmes have been provided for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Directors’ responsibility on the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019, which were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 49 to 56.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

[ b2 B 2
EEeNEETHTETHEEERARRR
BEENBEAENRBRAOHERREE @ I
BRARRIEY REFHE RERRRE
BHIE -

BE_ZT-NAF+RA=+—HLEFE" K
SECEMEREEE EFERS - A
REEHESASEERNEEEUNT
E o

EEENRR BE_ZE-NAF+ZA
=t—HRILEFE ((BEEOEEAEEDN
EXREERE  BREMK  SENANARE
w KRk EIRBAE T R () EHRHERE
BEEFEEROABNARERLIBE RIE
Hest kP BamIfE A RERHE
ARAE

EEHGSUBRRNEE

EENE  REARBEMNESTEL R
BEE-_T-hF+-A=1+—HBILFEHN
RAEMERR - ARBIMNEZBENE AR RF
REMBRRNEBEREE  HNFE49E56
BB AZ AN RS

HREKE
BURAERDS R AT AR B B L B IR
EXRENEFRBERNERTHARE -

BEEXH
RIER - AR AR SRS i -
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. There is no pre-determined dividend payout
ratio and the declaration and distribution of dividends shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board taking into
account, among others, the financial results, cashflow
situation, future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and expenditure plans and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The declaration and distribution
of dividends shall also be subject to the articles of the
association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations. The Board will review the policy from time to time
and make relevant amendments as necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to maintain regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to
conveying important and relevant information to shareholders
on a timely basis. In compliance with the Listing Rules, at least
20 clear business days’ notice will be given to the shareholders
for annual general meeting and at least 10 clear business
days’ notice will be given for all other meetings. All general
meetings of the Company have been conducted by way of poll
and detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the commencement of the meeting. Results on all general
meetings will be published by way of an announcement
immediately following the relevant general meeting.

IR EBR

EEZHERRER - NARKEREHE
SRR WENEZEESHF  KIER
AR HRREE o« AR AL EEATFEEIRE
xR MERKDEKRESHESTSF R
(BB MRS  RERENN - KK
LERAEN  BABKEXHEABARES
SRR AEENTAECERRE2ERE
BE - ARAA ARSI ARKETANE
ZER/BENEMTATIRLKMESE
BRSNS TR AR R ER2ADAIIA K
PRAEERERMERARR - EFSRHTHE
FHBOR - WREERFREDEEERR

=
A ©

B2 iR SRIE R
ARRIEHEERRERSTH AULA TR
A WAERBRARREREZENEHE
Fte REST EMRA - BIOTRRBEFAGH
AR & D20 BB E XA BA
MBTMEEMRERKEHZD10ET
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to
the Company’s principal place of business at Room 1201A,
12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the
nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be appointed
together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period
commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and ending on the
date falling seven days after the dispatch of the said notice of
the general meeting.

Any Shareholder may direct their enquires and proposal either
by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Room
1201A 12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, by fax at (852) 3915 7800 or by email at
enquiry@brilliantcircle.com.

Shareholders should direct any questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

IR R BRI
REBEARABAMERAMRNE 815K - (ET—
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

Deloitte

To the Members of Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited
BEBRZEREEERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 57 to 242, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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B A BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BERESER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FEEHEHEIBBEESNEEHE - R A
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HAHIMGAFERRANETRAEENS
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These I8 ° ZEEIE TN EE BT B EGA MR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HRHEZREHEE - EEf @Y% EEAE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 12EEBHER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEENPHNEELE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R ER

We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter due to significant
judgements and estimations exercised by the
Group’s management in impairment assessment.
EEFINHERENEABERETFE RA
" BEEERERETRENGRAEDERSY
i K fhEt o

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill assessment included:

BEERHERENEETNIEFEE

o Discussing with the Group’s management on
their approach to impairment assessment;
o B EEETEEMNWmMENENITE:

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the impairment
models and checking their mathematical
accuracy;

o HEAERXETAERAERHERTER

° Reviewing the valuation report provided by the
independent valuer on the discount rate adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecast model and
evaluating its reasonableness;

e MIFTHRREREBBAEXMRAITEXENE
BREMEBEHNMGERS  LAHEHEERE
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BB AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REETER

BRFISHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEESPNEELE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
(continued)

BB R ER L (&)

The Group had a goodwill of HK$1,025,495,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$103,000,000) as at 31 December 2019 relating
to the acquisition of printing businesses in 2009,
2012 and 2018 and the acquisition of sales of radio
frequency products businesses in 2017 which are
subject to impairment assessment in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36
“Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) issued by the
HKICPA. As detailed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. Significant judgements, estimations
and assumptions were required by management of
the Group in assessing the recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units. The value in use of the cash-
generating units is determined based on the
discounted cash flow forecast model which requires
estimation on certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and sales growth rate.
R_ZE-—NE+A=+—HB  BEHERN_-Z
ThE  Z2—_F R N\FUREHRZEB K
R-E—tFUBHEERHEHERBELRE
1,025,495,0007% 7T (1 R&5HE{E 518 103,000,000
BT ARBEERSTMASEMNEE G
AIZE 365 [EERE] ([BESTERE 365 ])E
TTRERTE o INAR & BT IS R M sk 21 FraFit -
ErmBEsamEAGtrkoesE BIAREE
BHEX NS IS BELSUNEREERE
PHREE - EahReEABLHAIKEEHE
- EEEEREEBAELERHALE  H5tRE
®eoBHeEFABUNERABENDRITRESRER
BARAETE  BPERETRR(BERRE &
IR E - EFERIHEERE)ERMET -

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast model including
the terminal growth rate, gross margin and sales
growth rate by comparing the management’s
expectations for the market development to
relevant industry growth forecasts and past

performance, as appropriate; and

s BEAUBEREAETSERHBEOTRER
BARBERR(EEBRME)WHE - 7F

EITRRSREFAARAMRANEZRR

AR (BRZEERE - EMRLHEERE

K)ELEE &

° Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by
the management to evaluate the potential
impacts on the recoverable amount and

impairment.

o EHATEBETHNBRENN - AFHEE A

W Bl &8 KREREELE -
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B XA E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

BRFISHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEENPNEELE

Estimated recognition of revenue from printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing

of laminated papers over time

T ERERZDRFEERRREES AN KE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers as a key audit matter due to
significant judgement exercised by the Group’s
management in assessing the enforceable right to
payment.
EEFNERNRTEBERBEEESENKRAR
BREAFE RER EXEEEBEETHRY
AT BRE RS 78 4F B K M o

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management recognises revenue
from printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers of approximately
HK$1,283,107,000 and HK$42,028,000
respectively. Under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, control is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether the
Group’s contracts with customers in relation to
printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers with no alternative use create an
enforceable right to payment for the Group.
WANERE MRS FTiREE - BRRE D hl#R
ENRI 2 1E B % & EEe & A Y25 491,283,107,000
78 7T} 42,028,000/8 7T © WRIEE 7 M % 5 £ R
F1HE[BEFEa0OKR] - M EEEMNBONR
ExY BXEEEERAENEE B BE5EA
SR HIATIE AWEGE S B B AES 5 BUFIR - Al
EREREEYR - BT SSEEARIREEEEK
HEESHANEPSHARETES S5EAIER
<R A B0 B th P AR R VR HE B R HI R -

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of the
enforceable right to payment included:

BEERAARNNTRETHNREFERE

e  Understanding and evaluating management’s
procedures in identifying and classifying sales
contracts with or without right to payment;

o  THRKVEEBREBHBER KD EM S A
NFREHE S R RS

° Reviewing the key terms of significant sales
contracts to assess the enforceable right to
payment based on the contract terms;

e EHAETHEANBARMBERIGN  KMRE
B RMERET AR PTEAT T BV S R

° Obtaining and reviewing the opinion of the
external legal counsel, in particular, the legal
counsel’s interpretation of the applicable laws
and their implication on the assessment of the
enforceability of the right to payment; and

s EREFHINDEZEBNER  FRl2ER
JEBL 5 5 5381 PR O 191 &) o M I L S S o o < R A
HURE &

o Assessing the competence, experience and
objectivity of the legal counsel engaged by the
management.

e FHMEBEREEMZEAZEMMES  KBREE
B o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report

B A BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ka Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

ek HEaEEREHRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2019 2018

—E-RE —T-N\F

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000

P5T FHET FHT

Revenue Wz 5 1,495,833 1,366,753

Cost of sales 85 & B (1,148,171) (1,065,863

Gross profit EF 347,662 300,890

Other income H A KA 7 33,460 32,244

Other gains and losses Hih Uz & E518 8 (24,049) (64,357)
Impairment losses on TREERGHNEERE

financial assets and contract B8 (kR E)

assets, net of reversal 9 (1,960) (6,218)
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& &7 tHFA X (57,011) (60,426)
Administrative expenses TR Z (83,458) (98,572)
Other expenses HEamx (3,100) (3,396)
Finance costs Bh & A A 10 (19,678) (22,776)
Share of profits of associates DB N T A 23 41,751 51,669
Share of (loss) profit of Dh—EEETE(EE)

a joint venture el 24 (930) 623
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEME A T - 91,681
Profit before taxation B A5 Al A 232,687 221,362
Taxation 18 11 (55,801) (46,930)
Profit for the year FEEF 12 176,886 174,432
Other comprehensive expense: HMZ2HEBX :
ltem that will not be reclassified to E&T@EHHEEERD

profit or loss: B
Exchange differences on translation F# & IHAE B & 2 R EHE

from functional currency mEAIE N Z58

to presentation currency (43,119) (132,393)
Total comprehensive income FELIEKZBEE

for the year 133,767 42,039
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

GeBEaREMaEERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —T)F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
PEE FERT FAT
Profit for the year attributable to: LA~ A TG EE 5 F) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ DN 175,886 169,383
Non-controlling interests AR 1,000 5,049
176,886 174,432
Total comprehensive income LTATEREFEFEZE
for the year attributable to: Wes ke sa -
Owners of the Company KRABHEA A 133,370 39,408
Non-controlling interests FEEAR A 397 2,631
133,767 42,039
2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZE-N\F
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Earnings per share BREF
Basic BN 15 0.11 0.11
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BRIR R

At 31 December 2019 R —Z—NFE+-F=+—H
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
P5T FHET FHT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WMENMKE 17 790,341 790,586
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 103,596
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 19 - 100,434
Investment properties WEYE 20 23,076 25,703
Goodwill [EEES 21 1,025,495 1,050,965
Intangible assets ﬁﬂ;ﬁ? 22 113,423 163,765
Interests in associates ABE N B RE 23 423,245 460,604
Interest in a joint venture /7\\ HEeEhENER 24 7,676 8,755
Deferred tax assets R IBEE 36 1,940 200
Rental and other deposits paid EfHe kHEMES 20,249 27,946
2,509,041 2,628,958
Current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 160,771 163,766
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 19 - 2,425
Trade receivables g 5 W TE 26 557,708 544,637
Contract assets BREE 27 170,724 165,385
Other receivables, prepayments  E{th & Y018 ~ B F0IE &%
and refundable deposits RER S 28 35,936 59,904
Tax recoverable EEE 2,329 3,129
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRITER 30 9,476 11,250
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 30 201,168 355,508
1,138,112 1,306,004
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e PRI R R

At 31 December 2019 R=—Z—hE+=-_F=+—8

2019 2018
—ZE-hEFE —E-)N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET TFET
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5N HRIE 31 226,288 229,676
Other payables and accruals HibENZIBE R EAAER 32 92,568 116,545
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 4,354 _
Purchase consideration payable — gt EERAEXNEE
for acquisition KB - 12,776
Amounts due to non-controlling XN EPNGIE R 2
interests of subsidiaries IE 29 8,290 8,154
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 256,462 601,334
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 30 2,728 19,897
Income tax payable FETER1S TR 32,921 30,489
623,611 1,018,871
Net Current Assets REBEESHE 514,501 287,133
Total Assets less HWEERRBERE
Current Liabilities 3,023,542 2,916,091
Non-current Liabilities kRBERE
Government grants BB E 35 27,297 30,175
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 - 18,750
Lease liabilities HEARE 34 551 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 36 69,518 68,565
97,366 117,490
Net assets BEEFE 2,926,176 2,798,601
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BRIR R

At 31 December 2019 R—ZE—hE+-A=+—H
2019 2018
—EB-hEF — N\
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET TFET
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& 7N 37 7,839 7,839
Share premium and reserves R R B R HE 2,896,462 2,755,824
Equity attributable to owners KNBER AEGER
of the Company 2,904,301 2,763,663
Non-controlling interests eI IR A 21,875 34,938
Total Equity ERAEsE 2,926,176 2,798,601
The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 242 FE57E 242 B NEAHBHRERDN _E =

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David

HERHLE
DIRECTOR

EF

—F
TE-ZA-tHRESFSHAERRERD

Wi MIIALTREREE

Mr. Qin Song
KR FTE
DIRECTOR

EF

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGE PN 1
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Dividend Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
Bx  REE tERE  BHRE  RERE  EXGE  REEA & FBRER ERA4E
HK§000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Thr  TEnr  TEr TRt T TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
(Note g (Note b)
(M) (MiEb)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—f—H 7839 4936913 189,225 (2,906,749) - 50,381 645080 2,923,695 62,878 2,986,573
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 169383 169,383 5049 174432
Other comprehensive expense £ Ef 2 EH %
for the year - - - - - (129975 - (10975 418 (132399
Total comprehensive (expense) EE 2 (5 ) Yz
income for the year et - - - - - (129975 169,383 39,408 2,631 42,039
Dividends recognised as BRADEORE
distribution (note 16) (HizE16) - - - - - - (199905 (199,905) - (199,905
Dividends declared to MFFERERS KR E
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (23920 (23,920)
Acquisition of additional equity & — &I B A B0 FE4)
interest in a subsidiary e - - - 465 - - - 465 (6,651) (6,186)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\&F
+-A=1—H 7830 4936913 189,225 (2,905,278) - (19594 614558 2,763,663 34938 2,798,601
Profit for the year FEEA - - - - - - 175886 175386 1,000 176,886
Other comprehensive expense  FEH M2 ER Y
for the year - - - - - (42516) - (42516) (603) (43,119
Total comprehensive (expense) £E 2 & (Fi%) s
income for the year pak = - - - - (42516) 175886 133,370 97 133,767
Final dividends for 2019 “E-NERERBRE
proposed (note 16) (ftzE16) - - - - 290,03 - (299,936) - - -
Dividends declared to MEERERSRRE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (2,574) (2,574)
Acquisition of additional equity Y& — R B 2 R FES)
interest in a subsidiary (note b) M HE (P55 b) - - 655 (2.447) - 143 8017 7268 (10886 (3619
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N%F
+-A=1+—H 7839 4936913 189,880 (2907,725) 299,936  (121,967) 499,425 2,904,301 21875 2,926,176
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

GeEmB PR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

Notes:

(@)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserves. Appropriation
to such reserve is made out of profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The
appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue.

Other reserves comprised (i) the merger reserve of HK$79,000 which
arose from the difference between the nominal value and premium of
shares of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof; (i) issue of 480,000,000
shares of the Company with fair value of HK$4,267,200,000 at 14 April
2011 to Mr. Tsoi Tak, the former controlling shareholder of the
Company in exchange of its entire equity interests in Brilliant Circle
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited) which were acquired by Mr. Tsoi Tak, that former
controlling shareholder at 10 September 2009 using cash and certain
listed shares held by him with fair value of HK$1,781,817,000 in
aggregate; (i) an amount of HK$516,437,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company; (iv) an amount of HK$81,223,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Giant Sino Investments
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in December
2014; (v) an amount of HK$119,000 resulting from the change of equity
interests of non-controlling shareholders from 0.69% to 0.51% in
Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd in November 2015, (vi) an amount
of HK$1,409,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Co., Ltd, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2017, (vi) an amount of
HK$465,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity interests
in Zhaotong Antong Package Material Co., Ltd, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in August 2018, and (vii) an amount of
HK$2,447,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in December 2019.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

RESHHHREARKNME(HE]) EENBBE
BEERPRE - AR RIH B A RARL
EERE - PEEZRFREOBERDETEMNER
*%Eﬁﬁﬁim@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ¢%ﬁ i & %8 &

DEREEMNAESEEFRE - WETHME
EE R P BT E AR E A H50% WTTE
ERBETRHREE LA TRETRERME L—
FENERMA)  TAEBEAMCEITERS
AR

EAbEE T ()& GHRE# 79,0008 7T - EF‘E@
FrUR BE BT /8 A RIAR (D M E (B SR (BAR R AR
FrE T AR R BAROOEENZE () AR
R-ZE——FNB+IARAR Tm%hk%ﬁ
18 %5 £ 3217 89 480,000,000 & i 15 - AR EEA
4,267,200,0007 7T * AR ER AT AR AR AR 13 5T
AR —EENFNATAUESEABEET LT
R BR SR EEIERERA R (AIE ST
BEBEERAR) 2R - HEAAAEBES S
751,781,817,000% 7T (i) W B R 2~ R 3E 2 B Mt
B QB EE S = I M ARENRIG R A 7 EE SN #E
B4 HFIA 516,437,000 7T ¢ (V)R ZF —H4F
T ARBARREE2EWNBARREREER
N EEE YN BT EE A KO 5RIE 81,223,000 7T ¢ (V)
RZZT—RF+— AFERBRERFRIITRZE
BB AR AAER 0.69% & 4 0.51% FTEER
FRIE119,00087C : V)R =T —+H 4 N\ AUEER
ARIFFEEMBRAREREMREVEBEEERA
) EE SN AE BT EE AE /O 5K 78 1,409,000 78 7T ¢ (vii) 7
- N\FENABBAAREZENEARIBE
ZEBEME AR A AEINEERTE LN RIE
465,000 70« RNiNAZZE—AE+= Ui
RNARIEZEHBARFRIIMRE NS ER AR
FAYNIHEE AT EE A MO 3R I 2,447,000 78 7T ©
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

MEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTH
Profit before taxation & F Bz A1 232,687 221,362
Adjustments for: JHEE -
Share of profits of associates SIGEE R EEF (41,751) (51,669
Share of loss (profit) of a joint venture DME—EAEEEEE
e A)) 930 (623)
Finance costs B & Ak X 19,678 22,776
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MREITE
plant and equipment 92,250 93,122
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEENE 6,508 -
Release of prepaid lease payments RN HE IR = 2,263
Depreciation of investment REMFEITE
properties 1,891 2,017
Impairment losses on financial TREERENEENRE
assets and contract assets, EE (F0kR D)
net of reversal 1,960 6,218
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#E 50,190 46,759
Interest income FEWA (1,586) (1,157)
Gain from changes in fair value of ?Ziﬁﬁi EBETABRZNSH
financial assets at FVTPL BEAABEEZESHKE (1,896) (3,379)
(Gain) loss from changes in fair BARBEFABRNSH
value of financial liabilities at BEANEEEZD (W)
FVTPL E518 (1,190) 482
Government grants for acquisition of UM% - HE LR EH
property, plant and equipment BB € (2,523) (2,634)
(Gains) losses on disposal of HEMSE - BE MEEN
property, plant and equipment (W) EE (492) 39
Recognition of impairment on WRME - WERFRERE
property, plant and equipment 33 -
Gain arising from early termination RABEHEESLMEER
of lease contracts Wz (20) -
Recognition of write-down on MR A R 17 EWUR
obsolete inventories 1,053 592
Recognition of impairment on wREERE
goodwiill 15,000 48,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=1 )= NS o€ - (91,681)
Loss on disposal of partial equity & — R A a3 o R
interest in an associate " EE = 8,536
Unrealised net exchange losses REIE N E BT 7,524 10,519
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—ZE-hEFE —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Operating cash flows before movements &8 & & & E AT 2 X715
in working capital RERE 380,246 311,542
Increase in inventories FE®E (1,093) (10,197)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables & 5 & Uz I8 (1EH0) k> (29,617) 239,777
Decrease in other receivables, Hih e sRIE - FERRIER
prepayments and refundable deposits ~ A[iREZ] S D 2,438 14,001
Increase in contract assets BHEEEM (8,446) (114,886)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables & 5 FE sRIB12 00 R J>) 882 (62,292)
Increase (decrease) in other payables — H b f&{~ 5018 2 fE T & A5 0N
and accruals G ) 5,354 (4,561)
Cash generated from operations RS EEIR S 349,764 383,384
Income taxes paid EFTSH (49,921) (43,512)
Interest paid B A (19,819) (24,417)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHELERSFH
ACTIVITIES 280,024 315,455
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

SmEEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETR (1,020,654) (965,470)
Redemption of structured deposits BE Ol A& B M7 3K 1,022,550 975,951
Deposits paid for and acquisition of TUEE W E - BE KRB
property, plant and equipment HieA (138,813) (186,833)
Acquisition of a subsidiary I EE — M B R 7 - (144,145)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEDEBETER (26,763) (55,057)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 12BN KRR TIF K 28,352 48,748
Payments for prepaid lease payments Xz ¥& {1 & 5% 18 - (28,259)
Dividend received from an associate, B — A& R R UWEAR B
net of withholding tax (FIFFEHIF) 69,566 73,844
Proceeds on disposal of partial & — Hﬁﬁ EWNEIE Sl g
equity interest in an associate TS ET 22,160 -
Payments for rental deposits XN fﬂfa? & (690) -
Payments for contingent consideration 3 sl A K(E (436) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERFJERERIE
plant and equipment 12,628 8,371
Interest received SN 1,586 1,157
Advance to a related party m—EREER TR - (54)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H &M B A B FT1ERIE - 295,000
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RETH (ER)ELERLFH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (30,514) 23,253
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

> A Ao —1
:W\ElﬁiészEaiﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE
2019 2018
—E-RE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & T B
New bank borrowings raised PILIEITEE 415,261 521,098
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEARE (4,152) -
Payments for purchase consideration Szt E K& (11,415) -
Advance from a non-controlling interest & B JE12 MG A 25 AU B ZX 292 3,356
Repayment of bank borrowings BBIRITIEE (777,603) (574,376)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B IEE R B
interests (2,574) (23,920)
Dividends paid ERRE = (199,905)
Acquisition of non-controlling W B8 — I BT /B 2 B 9 FE 2 I e 2
interest of a subsidiary (3,618) (6,186)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBHEAREFE
ACTIVITIES (383,809) (279,933)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRBRELEEEE (BL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B nFEE (134,299) 58,775
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BWRERALEE
AT 1 JANUARY 5 H 335,611 292,511
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N [ R &4 S iy 52 £ (2,872) (15,675)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-—A=+-—HHWBRERRE
AT 31 DECEMBER, £EEE -
represented by & 198,440 335,611
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR AR E 201,168 355,508
Bank overdrafts RITES (2,728) (19,897)
198,440 335,611
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

GENERAL

Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
11 November 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (the “Controlling Shareholder”). The address
of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Room 1201A, 12th Floor, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in
provision of the printing of cigarette packages,
manufacturing of paper packaging materials,
manufacturing of laminated papers, manufacturing and
sale of radio frequency identification (“RFID”) products,
printing of packages and decoration matters, research
and development on printing technology, wholesale,
import and export of the packaging products and other
related services.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“‘RMB”).
For the convenience of the financial statements users,
the consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) as the Company’s shares are
listed on Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment,

HKAS 19 Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in

HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

2.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases”
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS
17 “Leases” ("HKAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains
a lease.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

R EEMBRELEN(E
BB HREED ] REBITE

(%)

REAFERBERNHITETBHBR

H

2.1

AR EAEFTT A (&)

BFEMBREEDE 1655 AE ]
AEBRAFEEREREEY
BIELRNE 165 - THMBTR
SEAF16FMAE B ST ER
F17THRIMEE] (HEGHER
FATH]) RAERE -

HEREZE
AEBCEREREEZF - #
BRUHREERE16REAN
SERRBEEAGTERE17HRE
ZE(BRMBHREREZE
T)-REFARDRE-ALH
=EESHE] #HSHEENSG
# o MAERERRIRBES
HENALRALER - Fitt -
AEERABHHERBEREMR
BHZAEFERNAL -

PR -F-NEFE-A—HZkZR’
RIVHERTNANME  AKE
RIBE B REERF165R
HHETERABEENES - AFHHE

BHELESHE -



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

AS a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at
amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
adjusted by any prepaid lease payments by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied
the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent
relevant to the respective lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

ii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

ii. used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension and termination options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

AS a lessee (continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The incremental borrowing rate applied
by relevant group entities ranged from 4% to 6%.

R EEMBREEN(E
BB R A ) BB A
(%)

RAEFEBHEMNFETEBUBER
HEEAREBITAR(E)
21 ERMEBREEAE165KEE]
(%)
ERBAN (&)
RERNDEREEHENHER
REEEER  AEEERER
rﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂrﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁlﬁﬁfmi
EEFFE - HESEERER
R EEFTFEN T 4% E6% °

At 1January
2019
R=-ZF—NF
—A—H
HK$’000
FExT
Operating lease commitments disclosed ~ RA=ZE— \F+_-_A=+—H#%EHE
as at 31 December 2018 B AE & TH B 7,932
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant LRSS AN RAENEE
incremental borrowing rates BE 7,619
Add: Lease liabilities resulting from lease  f1 : YR AHSELHSEETAHN
modifications of existing leases * EEMNHEBE 2,989
Less: Practical expedient — leases with B BERERZET — HERER
lease term ending within 12 months FERBEARFH12E AR
from the date of initial application ERWHEE (603)
Recognition exemption R L
— low value assets (excluding short- —KEEEE(TEEER
term lease of low value leases) BEHEENTSHEE) (125)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—A—HNHEEARE 9,880
Analysed as R
Current mEh 4,446
Non-current FETTED 5,434
9,880
# The Group renewed the leases of existing offices by # AEBMEBEBI VR EREABE

entering into new lease contracts which commenced after
date of initial application. These new contracts are
accounted as lease modifications of the existing contracts
upon application of HKFRS 16.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BEBHIHEANERRERA
=EMNHEE - WEMEESHNER
BRI BHMEERE165RETIE
RABAHNNBEEITINE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

AS a lessee (continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own
use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

2. ERFTERMBREEN(SE
BMBHREED ] REBITE

RAFERBERNHITETBHBR
HEAREBITAR(E)
21 EFEBUBHRESERF1657EE]

(%)

TERZBA (B)
EREREEERN _T—NF—
A—BOEmERRERNANSIA

Right-of-use
assets
EHEEE
HK$°000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to RERABEETBMEERFE 16571
operating leases recognised upon BRNCEHERETAEEE
application of HKFRS 16 9,880
Reclassified from prepaid lease HEMNAEFBEENSE (W)
payments (Note) 102,859
112,739
By class: 1REER -
Leasehold lands HE+H 102,859
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRETF 9,880
112,739
Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were W RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H &

classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and
non-current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to HK$2,425,000 and HK$100,434,000 respectively were

reclassified to right-of-use assets.

EAE i IEN KBRS EATE
NIERE - REATEMBRE
HAIFE165%E - EANAERED
B & IER BN ED Y 9 Bl 2,425,000
7 7T }2.100,434,00078 T & E#H 2

BREREEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16, the Group is not required to make any
adjustment on transition for leases in which the
Group is a lessor but account for these leases in
accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not
been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as if
the existing leases are modified as at 1 January
2019. The application has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. However, effective 1 January
2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease
term after modification are recognised as income on
straight-line basis over the extended lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

AS a lessor (continued)

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” to allocate consideration in the contract
to each lease. The change in allocation basis has
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current year.

The application of HKFRS 16 as a lessor has no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019 and its consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and statement of
cash flows for the current year.

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

2. ERFTERMBREERN(E
BB HREED ] REBITE

(%)

REAFERBERNHITETBHBR
HEAREBITAR(E)
21 FBRMBHEEAE1655HE ]

(&)
As a lessor (continued) ERHA (&)
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
R=B-h%
-A-8
BER-Z-N\F REEEMK
TZA=t-8 BEEAE165
EHRNEEE wE SIRNRER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TEL T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Prepaid lease payments RGO () 100,434 (100,434) -
Right-of-use assets EAEEE - 112,739 112,739
Current asset RBEE
Prepaid lease payments BARERE () 2425 (2,425) -
Current liability RBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE - 4,446 4,446
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 5,434 5,434
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating st E—=E—hE+_A=+—H

activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

IFFEURBE T EREEEEDHN
Reng8ms  2EESNEHD
BIEEXABEER-T-NF—A
— RS ISR RRAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material*

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform*

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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2.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was
considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material (continued)

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020. The
application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be
broader than the definition it replaces, but does not
change the distinction between a liability and an
equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance on how
to select a measurement basis for a particular asset
or liability;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

2018 (the “New Framework”) and the Amendments

to References to the Conceptual Framework in

HKFRS Standards (continued)

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined financial
statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2020. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on
its effective date in determining the accounting policies
especially for transactions, events or conditions that are
not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including the re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to
the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration
is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included
as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to
fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in the net assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any assets, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associates
of joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

3.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

Revenue from the printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use are recognised over time.

Revenue from the sale of RFID products and
manufacturing of paper packaging materials are
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods or service.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff dormitories and motor
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
arate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review, in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE —ZF—

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences resulting from translation to the Company’s
functional currency, RMB, accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in RMB to the Group’s presentation
currency HK$ are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
exchange reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

3.

BEREBRE)
BB &
TEABMRENEH

SETHRFHE
M S R AR BB 2R -
BT #Bh & 77 & T LARERR

T 6 B 2 T 0 AN 5 [ A AR AR B B AR
(# BY & H R DA MR (B BX RO AR ) 75 i ST 4
BA ARGEERNBmTER - &
BME  ZBRAMEEERERER
SEERE  ZEIUEMBTAES
FRBEE - ERHZEAMBR RN HmE
PHERARIEWA - ARBREED
AERFRRERRLEEEEER

=185 -

EREELEMXNEENMELRA
SRR A BNRS B 15 & BY (Y 4 A 12 48R8
PR T AT WEREY BT /B & - T E
P A5 AT UCER B HR T 0 1B 2 RERR)

RARRE R A

HBatlE Bt REBBERME
R ARG BIMER  EREERHE
AT e T = A SR T IARERR ©



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the costs of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS
16) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, the cost and accumulated
depreciation of that item at the date of transfer are
transferred to investment property for subsequent
measurement and disclosure purposes.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

If an item of investment property becomes owner-
occupied property because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
cost and accumulated depreciation of that item at the
date of transfer are transferred to property, plant and
equipment for subsequent measurement and disclosure
purposes.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

3.

EXRGTTHE )

BELEE(E)

WrEp <
MEEHNZHRNELEREER R
¥ o

RS (KABIE R FAEEER) M

RRMELENBETLEEESENTA N
THA G T IAER -

o EREFNEEGHEAHEMANE
SR RAMTAIITIE

o EREFEEGHEAHEMANE
ENEMR

o [ERHHEEENEENR

s BEBENMMELRKEHER

B

o EARARM UHEEMER
ATERE R - WA RIHER
WEE &

s RWAERFERBRETLEERN
FEIERAS -

2019F F3 EREREBEERAF

113



114

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairments loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchase or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
assets is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXBIHBEK#)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SWMIAE)
Financial assets (continued) SREE(E)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) B EBEFAEzHEE (&)
Dividend income from investments is recognised when G IR A 8RB M A A% B U B 3R
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been B4 FI e L FF R o
established.
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets EHEERSHWEERE
The Group performs impairment assessment under AEERRBEHREEERE(EREE
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets EEENSEEYERELEREQ
(including trade receivables, other receivables and FHREATRENSREE(BIEES
refundable deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank FEWUERIE « B fth B K IE R AR ERT
balances) and contract assets which are subject to & BEEBRTERRBITESR) KE
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is HEEREITREN S - FEHEEEE
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in MNEERNEREBBHERN  UREAB
credit risk since initial recognition. MFEREEERRNE -
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings basing on internal
credit ratings after considering historical default records,
aging and length of customer relationship.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;
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PR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE —ZF—

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, The Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial assets is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade related balances including trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed
as a separate group. Other financial assets are
assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

e  Aging and past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

Length of customer relationship.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at FV'TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is contingent consideration that may be
paid by the Group as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, purchase consideration payable for acquisition
at amortised cost, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
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4.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition from sales of products with no
alternative use over time

Under HKFRS 15, control is transferred over time when
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. Significant judgment is required in determining
whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers with no
alternative use create an enforceable right to payment for
the Group. The Group has considered the relevant local
laws that apply to those relevant contracts and opinion
from external legal counsel. Based on the assessment of
the Group’s management, the relevant sales contracts
create an enforceable right to payment after taking into
consideration the legal opinion, contract laws and the
legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
contracts relating to printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use is considered to be performance obligation satisfied
over time.
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4.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
sales growth rate in order to derive the net present value
of the discounted future cash flow model. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of the recoverable amount, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$1,025,495,000 (2018:
HK$1,050,965,000. During the year ended 31 December
2019, impairment loss on goodwill of HK$15,000,000
(2018: HK$48,000,000) was provided. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are set out in note 21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. W&
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEFEEHOWELE
customers
2019 2018
—2-hnE ZEF)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Printing and manufacturing of ENR| % & B e B 5
cigarette packages and related RN E
materials
— Printing of cigarette packages — EfIEE B % 1,283,107 1,175,388
— Manufacturing of paper — BLE AR R
packaging materials 83,620 61,528
Manufacturing of laminated papers &li&E# & 45 42,028 44,776
Sales of RFID products SHE T HE 4 Bl EE o 87,078 85,061
1,495,833 1,366,753

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () BEEEAWBESE(E)
customers (continued)
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 22 7 R B
2019
ZB-nE
Manufacturing
Printing of paper  Manufacturing Sales
of cigarette packaging  of laminated of RFID
packages materials papers products Total
MREE iy HE HESE
a% BRI LEE #HER At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TEn TR TiEn

A point in time RBHEE = 83,620 - 87,078 170,698
QOver time (53 1,283,107 - 42,028 - 1,325,135
Total &t 1,283,107 83,620 42,028 87,078 1,495,833
2018
“F)\%
Manufacturing

Printing ofpaper  Manufacturing Sales

of cigarette packaging of laminated of RFD
packages materials papers products Total

EfIESE S Rt HEMHE
Bk BEH Baf HnlEm ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TARL T TiEn T
A point in time RBREE - 61,528 - 85,061 146,589
QOver time s 1,175,388 - 44776 - 1,220,164
Total st 1,175,388 61,528 44776 85,061 1,306,763
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z— NF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEEAWZSE(E)
customers (continued)
Geographical markets BT
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BAKNEERGINEE P Wz
customers is presented based on the location of ERTREBEREFPFAEMWES] -
customers irrespective of the origin of goods/ TimE M,/ REEE IR o
services.
2019
ZB-NF
Manufacturing
of paper Printing Manufacturing Sales
packaging of cigarette  of laminated of RFID
materials packages papers products
HEL BRIEE B HERNE
BEMH 2k BRE ABIER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THR THER THER
PRC i 83,620 1,283,107 42,028 74,185
Others (Note) i (M5E) - - - 12,893
Total ECE 83,620 1,283,107 42,028 87,078
2018
—T-\E
Manufacturing
of paper Printng  Manufacturing Sales
packaging of cigarette of laminated of RFID
materials packages papers products
BER HRIEE R HESA
BEMH 2k Bal BhlEM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TR TR
PRC w 61,528 1,175,388 44,776 56,405
Others (Note) Hib (F5) - - - 28,656
Total st 61,528 1,175,388 44,776 85,061
Note: Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United Wizt - e IREER R EME EMNEBRER
States of America and the Republic of Korea. B AGERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers

The Group’s contracts with customers for printing
of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers are tailor-made based on
customers’ specification with no alternative use to
the Group. Taking into account the contract terms,
the legal and regulatory environment in the PRC, all
contracts provide the Group’s enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date and
hence the revenue is recognised over time.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivable within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

A contract asset is recognised over the period
basing on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation representing
the Group’s right to consideration because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivery of goods. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables
when the goods are delivered to the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Manufacturing of paper packaging materials
Revenue from the manufacturing of paper
packaging materials is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being at the point the
goods are delivered to the customers. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivable within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

Sales of RFID products

Revenue from the sale of RFID products is
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group has no liability to
refund some or all of the consideration to the
customers. The Group generally does not require
the customers to pay in advance. The customers
should settle the trade receivable within 60 to 90
days upon the issue of value added tax invoice.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation

All the Group’s contracts with customers are for
periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 is not
disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments currently
are (i) printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages
and related materials, (ii) manufacturing of laminated
papers and (iii) sales of RFID products. The CODM
considered the Group has three (2018: three) operating
and reportable segments which are based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z— NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Segment revenues and results DEBU R I A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AR B A E B3 0] R & 55 20 &) 5 Hy IR
results by reportable segment. wmREEDT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-hE+=-A=+—HLE
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales
and related  of laminated of RFID
materials papers products Total
BRI R B
ERALER HENE
TREAH HEEAHE HRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TEx TET TET
Segment revenue D 1,366,727 42,028 87,078 1,495,833
Segment profit D EE 324,629 8,621 17,157 340,407
Unallocated — other incomeand A2 — HtUt AUAK
other gains and losses Efn e REE 9,411
Unallocated expenses AEHAX (136,314)
Finance costs BERA (19,678)
Share of profits of associates DMEEL N REF 41,751
Share of loss of a joint venture M—HEELEBE (930)
Impairment loss on financial assets 4 B &% K& 4 BERE
and contract assets, net of B8 (MREE)
reversal (1,960)
Profit before taxation BB AT A 232,687
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIERE)
Segment revenues and results (continued) w1l eI ES AE-P)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—-N\E+=-A=+—HLE
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette  Manufacturing Sales
packages and of laminated of RFID
related materials papers products Total
BllHpES
BERER HESR
el HEREH HHER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Segment revenue 7 EE 1,236,916 44,776 85,061 1,366,753
Segment profit DN 259,796 10,373 16,609 286,778
Unallocated — other income and K75 B — EfWMAN K
other gains and losses Hi s RER (32,113)
Unallocated expenses FAERE (148,282)
Finance costs %N (22,776)
Share of profits of associates DEBE D REF 51,669
Share of profit of a joint venture A —F& L1 EHH 623
Impairment loss on financial cREERSNEERE
assets and contract assets, B (NRERE)
net of reversal (6,218)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & KB A F1H K 91,681
Profit before taxation BB AL A 221,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of corporate management
expenses, directors’ emoluments, share of profits of
associates, share of (loss) profit of a joint venture, finance
costs, unallocated other income, other gains and losses,
impairment loss on financial assets and contract assets,
net of reversal, amortisation of intangible assets relating
to customer relationship, other expenses and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AR BAREBIRE L KA W& o 2R E
liabilities by operating and reportable segments: IHEERBEST :
Segment assets PWEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette  ElJjfll X RLiE B IE B 5 K
packages and related materials HREEM R 1,471,153 1,476,033
Manufacturing of laminated papers FEE AR 30,867 33,859
Sales of RFID products 6 57 SR B EE o 172,322 124,344
Total segment assets DEPEERE 1,674,342 1,634,236
Unallocated property, KAOWMME - BE K& HE
plant and equipment 5,202 30,138
Right-of-use assets FREEE 103,596 -
Prepaid lease payments BAHEERE - 102,859
Investment properties BEME 23,076 25,703
Goodwill RS 1,025,495 1,050,965
Intangible assets BLEE 113,423 163,765
Deferred tax assets B IEE E 1,940 200
Interests in associates Y RN O e 423,245 460,604
Interest in a joint venture R—EEETENER 7,676 8,755
Rental and other deposits paid EfEe REMES 15,243 18,524
Other receivables, prepayments Hib IR « TN FRIB R
and refundable deposits iRER & 35,936 59,904
Amount due from a related party e — R85 B 5,006 9,422
Tax recoverable Al Uk B 18 2,329 3,129
Pledged bank deposits EHIFRITER 9,476 11,250
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR AR 201,168 355,508
Consolidated assets HEEBE 3,647,153 3,934,962
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

6.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment liabilities

/\&Bﬁﬂ(ﬁ.ﬁj
ITHEERAE(E)
PHEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TET
Printing and manufacturing of ENRI 7 Bsh 75 JE8 g1 8
cigarette packages RN R
and related materials 206,915 209,528
Manufacturing of laminated papers ~ &li&E1E & 4 3,336 1,119
Sales of RFID products SHE ST SR R E mm 16,037 19,029
Total segment liabilities DEPEEEER 226,288 229,676
Other payables and accruals HEib e IE R ERTE A 92,568 116,545
Amounts due to non-controlling AN EENGIE 22 g
interests of subsidiaries A 8,290 8,154
Bank borrowings RITEE 256,462 620,084
Bank overdraft RITEX 2,728 19,897
Income tax payable TR 1S EL 32,921 30,489
Deferred tax liabilities BRI IR A 69,518 68,565
Government grants IEgSEE Ik 27,297 30,175
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,905 -
Purchase consideration payable HUIBEEBEMAINBE
for acquisition KRB - 12,776
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 720,977 1,136,361

Segment assets represent certain property, plant and
equipment, trade receivables, contract assets and
inventories which are directly attributable to the relevant
operating and reportable segment. Segment liabilities
represent trade payables which are directly attributable to
the relevant operating and reportable segment. These are
the measures reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIERE)
Other segment information Hith o &R
2019 —E-hEF
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales
andrelated  of laminated of RFID Segment
materials papers products total  Unallocated Total
DRREE
ERBER HEMNR
B RERRS BRER PHEE AAE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TET THT
Amounts included in the HEADERIADEER
measUrement of segment TARSE:
profit or loss or segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets (Noteg) ~ FEFRHAE (i5) 94,373 617 23,698 118,688 1,705 120,393
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 72612 694 147 73453 59,531 132,084
Impaiment losses on goodwil BERERE - - - - 15,000 15,000
Impairment losses on trade B REEY R ERR
and other receivables - - - - 2,044 2,044
Reversal of impaiment losses on ANEERESERR
contract assets - - - = (84 (84
(ains on disposal of property, HENE  BEREOEG
plant and equipment - - - - (492) (492)
Recognition of write-down on AREFEHE
obsolete inventories 608 - 445 1,053 - 1,053
Impaiment losses on property, plant ~ #1% ~ BE R EHESE
and equipment - - - - 3 3
Gain arising from early termination of -~ AR HEEAWELRME
lease coniracts - - = = (20) (20
Amounts requiary provided tothe  FEIMTELERF LAY -
CODM but not incluced in the [BraRTELTEER
measure of segment profitorloss; ~ FF ARIAEE -
Interest income HMEMA (1,004) (29 (306) (1,429) (157) (1,586)
Interest expense FERX 2,695 - 1,436 4131 15,547 19,678
Taxation e 40,840 892 1,558 43,290 12,511 55,801
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill. M ERBBEETEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oDEERE)
Other segment information (continued) HithpHER (&)
2018 —E-N\E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette  Manufacturing Sales
packages and of laminated of RFID Segment
related materials papers products fotal Unallocated Total
Rl
BEAZR HEAHR
BEE HEERS AhlER AeE AR h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Amounts included in the
measurement of segment prof
or loss or segment assets:

REGESEVELY
TANDE

Addtion to non-current assets (Note)  FEERBAE () 149,597 123 29,644 179,364 48,641 228,005
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 93749 1,093 115 94,957 42,382 137,339
Impaiment losses on goodwil HEREFE - - - - 48,000 48,000
Impairment losses on trade B REMEY R ERE

and other receivables - - - - 1,937 1,937
Impaiment losses on confract assets & 41A B EEE - - - - 4,281 4,281
Losses on disposal of property, HENE  BERRENEE

plant and equipment - - - - 39 39
Recogntion of write-clown on EAREGEHR

obsolete inventories 267 - 325 592 - 592
Amounts reqularly provided tothe  FEIMTELERFE AL -

CODM but not included in the [BEERNESTERE

measure of segment profitorloss: S AKIEE !
Interest income FEMA (1,076) (10) ] (1,099) (64) (1,157)
Interest expense FISRR 3,299 - 1,641 4,940 17,8% 2,776
Taxation e 36,907 2,308 3,614 41,829 5,101 46,930

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill.

i ERBAETBERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Revenue from major products and services
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products and services is set out in note 5.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the mainland of the PRC (country of domicile).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical
market irrespective of the origin of goods/services.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the

7 ERE R ()
TEERRRB R

BRAASEEEER&RE KD D
AT EABIES

i & & R
A EEREE R E A GERE) €
BT o

BERAKERBIMNIEP RS EFR
TiRIEIR TS 25 M wEY, R
BRI - BEAREERDEE
BER - IREEMMIEMEZY -

assets.
Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets (Note a)
RBEINEBEF FRBEE (Fista)
2019 2018 2019 2018
—EB-NF ZT-\F —B-hF —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET THERT FET
PRC 2] 1,482,940 1,338,097 2,071,232 2,153,284
Hong Kong =8 - - 4,284 6,115
Others (Note b) HAth (FisED) 12,893 28,656 - -
1,495,833 1,366,753 2,075,516 2,159,399
Notes: FiE -

(@) Non-current assets excluded those relating to rental deposit,
deferred tax assets, interests in associates and interest in a joint
venture, in which the operations of these associates and joint
venture are mainly carried out in PRC.

(b)  Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United States of
America and the Republic of Korea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

D EBE R ()
FRETERFHNES

RAREFEREFEFBAEASERE
BB 10% MUEEIA T

as follow:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Customer A (Note) ZEPA(ME) 367,025 356,130
Customer B (Note) EFB(M) 242,280 151,095
Note: Revenue from printing of cigarette packages. MisE - REERIEE R o
OTHER INCOME H A
2019 2018
—E-hE B )\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHBT
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERFI B HBA 1,560 1,157
Interest income on rental deposits MEZSFEWA 26 -
1,586 1,157
Sales of scrap materials HERER 12,212 11,671
Processing fee income MIEWA 537 2,783
Rental income e WA 1,148 3,256
Government grants (Note) BB e (M) 17,327 12,476
Sundry income IR A 650 901
33,460 32,244

Note: Government grants were received from the government of the
PRC mainly as incentives granted by local authority for
encouragement of its business development and innovation
except for an amount of HK$2,523,000 (2018: HK$2,634,000)
which was granted for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (as details in note 35). These grants are accounted for
as financial support with no future related costs expected to be

incurred nor related to any assets.

MisE - RITWB S I EFREKLT - 245
ERAEBEBERKAFMITLAEE
& MEBEYE  BEREEGERW
+F35) MER#2,523,0008 7T (ZF— N\
£ 1 2,634,000 7C) B o
ARIIER IS AR - BT EATAE

RABBARA - B BT E A HRE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HfttkmREE

2019 2018
—E-hFE  ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Net foreign exchange losses SN 51 F BE (12,597) (10,518)
Gain from changes in fair value of BAREBEFABENSH®
financial assets at FVTPL BEALBEEZH K 1,896 3,379
Gain (loss) from changes in fair value 2 A7 BEFT AR SR
of financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAAEBEZS K (EE) 1,190 (482)
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, HEWX - BE & HED
plant and equipment ez (&) 492 (39
Impairment losses on goodwiill BEREEE (15,000) (48,000)
Losses on disposal of partial equity & — B8 & N 7] 365 A
interest in an associate MEE — (8,536)
Impairment losses on property, YE - BB RRERESE
plant and equipment (33) -
Gain arising from early termination RATRIFAE S HEEM R E
of lease contracts 20 -
Other HAt (17) (161)
(24,049) (64,357)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 9. TREERGHNEERERBRE

ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS, NET OF (BREEME)
REVERSAL
2019 2018
—E-hE O —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Net impairment losses recognised AT B IEHERHREREIE
(reversed) on: (BEE) )55 -
— Trade receivables — B 5 RElksoE 2,141 2,474
— Contract assets — BHEE (84) 4,281
— Other receivables — HibEURIE (97) (537)
1,960 6,218

FREEz—_T—NF+_A=+—H
I FERRETEFBEIRE42 -

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 42.

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BEE KA
2019 2018
—E-AF  ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts $R71TE = M5B X .8 19,391 22,776
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 287 -
19,678 22,776
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

11. TAXATION 11. BIE
2019 2018
—E-RAE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Current tax: NERFRIR -
The PRC H
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) TSN
(TREMFH) 39,799 30,327
Withholding tax AN 16,408 6,516
56,207 36,843
(Overprovision) underprovision BAFELEMSH
of EIT in prior year (ERFRRE) BB T - (475) 208
Deferred tax (note 36): EFERIE (MF5E36) ¢
Current year REE 69 9,879
55,801 46,930
No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made HRAEENBAL I EREBEEK
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived G - B mp BB IE R R -

from, Hong Kong.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IRk

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (continued) 11. HIE (&)

The PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable prevailing tax
rates from 15% to 25% (2018: 15% to 25%) in the PRC.
Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises”, some
PRC subsidiaries, being a High-Tech Enterprise, were
entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% for the years from
2016 t0 2023 .

Upon the New Tax Law and Implementation Regulations,
the PRC withholding income tax is applicable to
dividends payable to investors that are “non-PRC tax
resident enterprises”, which do not have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which
have such establishment or place of business but the
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business, to the extent such
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such
circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries to non-PRC tax resident group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or lower
tax rate, as applicable. Under the relevant tax treaty,
withholding tax rate on distribution to Hong Kong resident
companies is 5%. Deferred taxation has been provided
on undistributed earnings of all subsidiaries and
associates (as details in note 36).

PRI EAERIETEAERE R
EK15%E25% (T — \F : 16% &
25%) 5t E - BB(PBIIINEREDRE
MINE B EFERE) - BT EWB
AEl (@R EE) R —RF
BT CFARREDEMRER
K A% EF ©

BEMBERERAG - REBMAA
SHEARENSB [FFFRERMTID
I BREENRKRE  ZE5HFEFRHERR
MEERPBRIWEEES L EHE
CHE A BIR B S & BB AR
FAURAER FEZ g E k& iR
B EUZERETIREFE AR -
RZEBRAT  FEMEB AR T
FHEERMMCESEEEARE
JBIE10% K TEFNFT 1S Bl il R g R AL
K (nE R ) EE - IRIBARBEB W E
MAEBERARIKNREEZ 5% H)
TBIR - BEREC AT EHB QR
REE R R R D IR BT IR B (FF
HHizE36) °
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE—=

11. TAXATION (continued)

—NEFT-A=1+—HILHFE

11.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

IR (%)

FARAL R EEABR

R EMEE

W24 SRR TR AT R R BRI T

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —N\%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Profit before taxation [ B BT 4 A1) 232,687 221,362
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% RERATE25%
(2018: 25%) (Note 1) —N\F : 25%) &
MBI (FIRE1) 58,172 55,341
Tax effect of share of profit of DAGHEE A Al L%
associates e (10,438) (12,917)
Tax effect of share of loss (profit) ME—HEELEEECar)
of a joint venture N E 232 (156)
Tax effect of expenses not AR 2 TG s B
deductible for tax purpose 24,286 44,135
Tax effect of income not taxable SR ARNTRIETE
for tax purpose - (22,920)
(Overprovision) underprovision in BAEFE (BEEE) BB
respect of prior years (475) 208
Additional tax benefit on research 25 A S A BB MR TS Tl 2
and development expenses (Note 2)  (FffzE2) (11,571) (10,327)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K M2 T 18 B 18 O Bl 15 o 2 605 6
Income tax on concessionary rate REBUERTENMEN (23,487) (19,035)
Deferred tax on undistributed FEIME AR BE AR
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries/ A5y Ik &R B IR RE A TR
associates 22,163 14,985
Tax effect of undistributed earnings 2 BREFBEH A D K
re-invested in PRC not taxable BRI IG 2 (3,686) (2,390)
Tax charge for the year FRBIBZ L 55,801 46,930
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (continued)

Notes:

The applicable tax rate of 25% represents the applicable income
tax rate of the subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Jiangsu, Hubei and
Anhui in the PRC which constitute the substantial part of the
Group’s operation for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, the Group
could obtain additional tax benefit, which is a further 75% of
certain qualified research and development cost incurred
endorsed by the Shenzhen, Anhui, Jiangsu and Hubei Local
Taxation Administrators.

1. BHIEE)

Wi

R R 25% R ERAL A F BRI ~ T8k -
W RZHOME QRN ERERHH
EMZEMBRARIEAEEHZ T
—NEFERZE-N\F+ZA=+—HLF
BRI DER -

RIFRBERSRARER - AEEESR
FINRIEESR - HERNRY - 28 I
Kb & b B MR SR A B0 | T4 B AR R
B ANHIREIN75% ©
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FERF
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived LB (GTA) T & EER
at after charging (crediting): FEmA
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) BEME (BsE13) 3,192 3,286
Other staff costs Hfb B TRA
Salaries and other benefits %%I’f/i\ NEMIER 161,608 152,210
Contributions to retirement BIRAE R FHEIE R
benefits schemes 15,021 14,003
Total staff costs B IRk AN42%8 179,821 169,499
Less: capitalised in inventories B RTES EP B (20,008) (11,430)
included in cost of sales T ASHER A (126,037) (113,480)
33,776 44,589
Auditor’s remuneration % EX AT BN 4,372 3,771
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAERAINFEK AR
expenses 850,815 718,809
Surcharges paid to governmental [T S (PO BT N &
authorities (included in other GTAHEMRA)
expenses) 1,322 -
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MEREITE
plant and equipment 92,250 93,122
Depreciation of investment properties & EITE 1,891 2,017
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FAEEEITE 6,508 -
Release of prepaid lease payments &8~ & 718 - 2,263
Amortisation of intangible assets mREEEE( qukﬁéi’%
(included in cost of sales and A RITEAR)
administrative expenses) 50,190 46,759
Total depreciation and amortisation 37 M # t4 4258 150,839 144,161
Less: capitalised in inventories B R FEFRERE (17,855) (6,822)
included in cost of sales T AHE KA (105,338) (113,744)
27,646 23,595
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e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued) 12. FERF (&)
2019 2018
—E-hE  —FT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Operating lease rentals in respect THEWMENKEHERS
of rented premises - 8,236
Recognition of write-down on HRRET EHOR
obsolete inventories (BT ASHERA)
(included in cost of sales) 1,053 592
Research and development costs TR BRI AR
recognised as an expense 67,078 60,549
Less: included in cost of sales s SR A E KA (65,300) (57,153)
Included in other expense HAEMBESY 1,778 3,396
Shares of taxation of associates PaN iy /NI F T 10,385 13,298
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERITHARFHH
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2018: ENSEN8R(ZE—N\F 9R)E
9) directors are as follows: EZEMenT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-hE+=-A=+—HLE
E
Other emoluments
Hir &M
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits Total
Fees other benefits scheme emoluments
HER RIKER

we HitB R AR a5
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TiER TiER

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David BERLE - 60 3 63
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) PIREAE (TTHER) - 1,697 36 1,733
Mr. Chen Huapei PREE %A - 522 20 542
Mr. Chen Xiaoliang *** R R EE™ - 405 14 419
Non-Executive Directors FRITES
Ms. Li Li T+ - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BFRTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEBLE 145 - - 145
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: it 145 - - 145
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon EXEEE 145 - - 145
435 2,684 73 3,192
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERTHARTM 2
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—-N\F+=-A=+—HBL#HF
E
Other emoluments
Hitri
Contributions
Salaries and fo refirement Others Total
Fees  other benefits  benefits scheme (Note) emoluments

#2k R
e it aElfs R(HR) BEH
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL TER TEL TEL TER

Executive Diectors B
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David BEmL L - 60 3 - 63
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) LA (TREH) - 1,353 43 - 1239
Mr. Peng Guoyi* YEERLE - 704 3 504 1,243
Mr. Chen Huapei™ A - 182 12 - 194
Non-Executive Directors FTES
Ms. LiLi FHigt - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors B 178 S
Mr, Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEEEE 130 - - - 130
Mr. Lui Tin Nang ARESE 130 - - - 130
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon EE i 130 - - - 180
390 2,299 B 504 3,286

2019FF5k BHHERBEIRERAR] 157



158

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Peng Guoyi resigned from the position as executive director
of the Company with effect from 9 November 2018.

* Mr. Chen Huapei was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 9 November 2018.

Mr. Chen Xiaoliang was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 12 March 2019.

Note: Compensation for the loss of office as a director in connection
with the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Qin Song is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Except for Ms. Li Li, there was no arrangement under
which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

13. EERTHRAREFMN @)

- ZEBREREARARNTES 5 -F
—NF+—ANBRER -

- REZLTEZEREARNITESE B
ZE - N\E+-ANBERER -

= BRRRAEBZER/ARFNTES B
“E-NFZATHEBER

M FRERARBEEAKBAREHENES
BRI (E -

EXFRBTESOME IESFE
FAE B AR A R AR B S 55 BR S
S e EXFIREIERITEF M
SR BRERERRBEENRE M
XAt e

PIRFE T SRR AW ITHAARE -
EXFEEOE B R EETR
AR RGBS

BRFEFLZ LI FRLEBEEHITH
BHEBPAR TR R TSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. TEEEFEER
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the rEEREBRRFATHE—B(ZE
Group, one (2018: two) was director and the Chief —N\F : WB)RARAEE RITHLE
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are o BEOMESEN EXHMFE18 - 84
included in the disclosures in note 13 above. The THE(ZE-N\F: =%) A8
emoluments of the remaining four (2018: three) individual ST

were as follows:

2019 2018
—2-nF ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Salaries He 3,159 2,078
Compensation for loss of office BERkfH(E - 929
Contributions to retirement benefits R4k i@FEH 2 2
schemes 70 41
3,229 3,048
Their emoluments were within the following bands: RENBER THEER -
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T8 7LE 1,000,000 7T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000 7t 1 2
During the current period, HK$nil (2018: HK$929,000) RAHE AEEZAEBL(ZF
were paid by the Group as compensation for loss of —\4F : 929,000/ 70 ) 1E A RERL I E -
office.
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e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREF|
The calculation of the basic earnings per share $’&ﬂ%ﬁ)\ﬂ’if£ﬁ§%$§ﬂﬁ?ﬁi
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the THIEUEFTE -

following data:

2019 2018
—E-NF ZZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Earnings: BF :
Earnings for the purpose of basic RUGTEERERRZFH
earnings per share (Profit for the B (KRARHEA AEG
year attributable to owners of the FERA)
Company) 175,886 169,383
2019 2018
—E-hEFE —E-)N\F
’000 000
T Fix
Number of shares: RAEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary F AT E &R E AR EFH
shares in issue for the purpose of BEETE BRI I
basic earnings per share 1,567,885 1,567,885
No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were BMEEYFRBEEREN RERAEM
no potential ordinary shares in issue during both years. BFEEEABEEETERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. R E
2019 2018
—E-hE  —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders ~ F R IR A7 TR AR 7]
of the Company recognised as LBATEAL S
distribution during the year:
2017 special dividend —E—LEFFRRE - 199,905
- 199,905
During the current year, the special dividend of HK$nil RAEE  REEERNERRES
(2018: HK12.75 cents) per share, amounting BEBT(ZZT—)\F : 12.7551l) -
approximately of HK$nil (2018: HK$199,905,000) has HAOAZEBET(ZZE— N\ F:
been paid to shareholders. 199,905,000 7T) °
The final dividend of HK19.13 cents per share in respect EEeREANBE-_ZE-NAFT+A
of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HKS$nil), —t+t—BULFERNSREREFRK
amounting to approximately HK$299,936,000 (2018: 19.183BI(ZE—N\F : THxT) 82
HK$nil), has been proposed by the directors and is 51 #7299,936,0008 7L (= F — )\ F :
subject to approval by the shareholders in the annual THEL)  EASKRERARRBFRE
general meeting. BEBRFAIER o
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e M ERARM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% -  BERRZRE
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BER BRHE
BT BEHE BE  HOZRG AE ERIR i

HK000  HK§000  HKEOOD  HKBOOO  HKSO00  HKBO00  HKSO000
TER TET TER TER TET TER TERL

COST 53
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\F-F-H 532,835 9,009 736,018 63972 14,568 20,427 1,376,829
Exchange adjustments B8 (22,945) (308) (33,320) 226 691) (1440 80970)
Additions AE 4,715 7,352 113,775 11,100 4,469 33,047 174,458
Acquisition of a subsidiary E-HHBAR - 462 5,657 107 187 - 6,363
Transferred from construction BRARRTR

in progress 2,409 - 16,920 2,330 - (21,659 -
Transferred to construction in progress EEZEE T2 - - (7,808) - - 1,022 (6,786)
Transferred from investment BRARENE

properties 37,444 - - - - - 37,444
Disposals e - 8807) (35,442) (12939 (1,587) (1,581) (60,355)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H 554,458 7,708 795,800 62,305 16,896 29,816 1,466,983
Exchange adjustments iR (7.972) (155) (16,218) 931) (260) (1,382) (26918)
Additions RE 3,064 830 30,648 2213 3,009 79,275 119,529
Transferred from construction ERATRIR

in progress 373 - 28,337 - - (23,710) -
Transferred from investment properties % B R 24% 721 - - - - - 721
Disposals de - - (18,446) [341) 2,665 - (1,459
At 31 December 2019 RE-NE+-A=1-H 551,134 8,383 815,121 63,246 16,980 83,999 1,538,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% -  BERRE®E)
(continued)
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BER GRE
B¥ HEXE WE  BOEREB AE EEIR @it

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thx TiEL T Fhx TiEx i

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT & REE

At 1 January 2018 WZE-\¥-A-A 160,938 1580 434120 41316 9,010 - 646,964
Exchange adjustments EREE (4,270) 46) (15,804) (1,389) (412) - (21915)
Provided for the year ENER 28,709 1,039 54,401 7,442 1,631 - 93,122
Transferred to construction BESHETR

in progress - - 6,786) - - - (6,786)
Transferred from investment BRARENE

properties 9,771 - - - - - 9,771
Eliminated on disposals HERBEH - (1,457) (31,549) (10,297) (1,462) - (44,759)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FTZA=+-H 195,148 1,116 434,388 37,078 8,667 - 676,397
Exchange adjusiments EXa% (1632 1) 8821) (627) (130) - (11,271)
Impaiment loss HEER - - - 3 - - 3
Provided for the year EREE 24,654 2737 56,663 6,612 1,584 - 92,250
Transferred from investment HRERENE

properties 429 - - - - - 429
Eliminated on disposals HERE - - (6,926) (84) (2,306) - (9,316)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 218,599 3,792 475,304 43,012 7815 - 748,522
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 332,535 4591 339,817 20,234 9,165 83,999 790,341
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1-H 359,310 6,592 361,412 25,221 8,229 29,816 790,586
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follow:

Building Over the shorter
of the term of lease

or 30 years

Leasehold improvement 3 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

At 31 December 2019, the Group is in the process of
obtaining the property certificates for the buildings with
carrying value of approximately HK$47,626,000 (31
December 2018: HK$51,424,000).
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e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FHAREE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEYE et

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000
TATT TR TR

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—H—H
Carrying amount EREE 102,859 9,880 112,739
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—A=t+—~H

Carrying amount FREE 98,743 4,853 103,596
For the year ended (2T —NF

31 December 2019 TZRA=1t—HILFE
Depreciation charge TEXH 2,232 4,276 6,508

Expense relating to short-term %8 HAFR E/HRER %

leases 2,797
Expense relating to leases AR B R ER BB

with lease terms end within HwELERF 165 E A

12 months of the date of FREF 128 A AR

initial application of HKFRS 16 f & ERERI % 627

Expense relating to leases of  KEEZEMRE (T8

low-value assets, EEEBEEEMNSH

excluding short-term leases HE)HBERX

of low value assets 69
Total cash outflow for leases ~ M EIR L H4E%E 7,645
Additions to right-of-use assets YNE{F AL E 864

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 2 to 3 years without extension and termination
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

During the current year, there were reduction to right-of-
use assets of HK$1,647,000 and the related lease
liabilities, due to early termination of certain contracts,
resulting in a gain on early termination of HK$20,000.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for
all leasehold lands except for leasehold lands with
carrying amount of HK$24,177,000 (2018:
HK$24,893,000) in which the Group is in the process of
obtaining.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group entered into new
leases for buildings that have not yet commenced, with
average non-cancellable period for 3 years, the total
future undiscounted cash flows under which amounted
to HK$901,000 over the non-cancellable period.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
staff dormitories and motor vehicles. As at 31 December
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed as above.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are
set out in note 42.
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FoAREH MR IERZRE - HERK
FRERNBEREHEE - EREST
R 16 7% B Ak 1 - B FH A M AR Ad N A
BHHIRE - ARBERSONTESR
WHETE A KA SR BT THOHIIR -

RAFE BRETEHREAKRILS
BRUEE A 1R AU A% 1 W55 20,0008 7T+
FREEER D 1,647,000 T 811548
BHEAE-

M BRTEI{E A 24,177,000 71 (=2 — N\
4 : 24,893,000 L) WBEE LA
It AEEN  AEEER
FrBTHE T HbERIS -t 5 FAAERE o

R-ZE-AF+-A=1t—H &%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. EHHEHERE
2018
—ZE—N\F
HK$’000
FHEIT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MIREMIEL DT -

Current asset MENEE 2,425
Non-current asset EMENEE 100,434
102,859
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20.
The Group leases out warehouses and office properties
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years
without extension and termination options.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a
result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

REW=E
AEERBELKEHELHABE R
AYE- Wik ARBEE - HH—
BN REN1E6F  TRERKLR
ISR -

HRAEHEINEEERZ AN
WeEEH A RAKEY ERAH
ERHMmAZINERR - HEEH
TEEHNHREEER L FABEA
KA ME RS BEYEAERE -

HK$’000
TET
COST A
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 82,432
Exchange adjustments PE X FR R (2,720)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment  ##EZ= % « KE &5 #E (37,444)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 42,268
Exchange adjustments bE X FR R (772)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment B E2 - BE LR (721)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H 40,775
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 25,296
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R 977)
Provided for the year F N 2,017
Transferred to property, plant and equipment SR =% - i E K& 9,771)
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—N\F+—_HA=+—H 16,565
Exchange adjustments bE X FR R (328)
Provided for the year F N 1,891
Transferred to property, plant and equipment B ZEYE - HE LERE (429)
At 31 December 2019 N-_E—-hhFE+=-_A=+—H 17,699
CARRYING VALUES ARMEE
At 31 December 2019 R-_E—NhF+=-_HA=+—H 23,076
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+-_HA=+—H 25,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties with carrying amount of
approximately HK$292,000 (2018: HK$27,673,000) have
been transferred to property, plant and equipment due to
the expiration of lease agreement with a third party.
These plants have been self-occupied by the Group since
the expiration of lease agreement.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2019 was HK$39,861,000 (2018:
HK$47,559,000). The fair value has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Roma Appraisals Limited is
member of the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value of investment properties located in the city
of Shenzhen was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties. The fair value of investment
properties located in the city of Benbu was determined
based on depreciated replacement cost approach, which
is based on an estimation of the market value for the
existing structures less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

20. REW=E (&)

MREFE = HAI WA SHEDE -
BREI{E47292,000/8 T (—ZE— )\ :
27,673,000/ 7T) H1% & W) 3 2 88
EYE BELSHE BEHERR
BEAAR  ZEHE —EHAEE
B -

FEBREVMENIABES

i

AEBBREMER-_T—NF+=
A=+—HB®MAnEER39,861,000
BT (ZF — J\F 1 47,559,000
TL) o AR EETIR IR AR E B &
BEMNBIAEREXEGHEMES
B GEERARETHHEME
EoRSEBTFHEERAAAERSD

REMBENEE -

RARINTHREMENRAEE
TIREB A RREUM RN 5
BTG LEOREE - LN ERT
MIENEORAEEIRETE
BEERANEETE % EAREHE
BOETMESESE  BREMER
1L )RR A N BT #R A T =0 1O B B
KRB -

RIGEFTMENREEE - WEN
= M s EE A AOR & H B #ik
A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20. BEWHE#)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment EEEREVENDIABETE(E)
properties (continued)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and RIERAR REBRIKEMEIAR
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of NABEEREMFBEOT

the reporting period are as follows:

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

Fairvalue = 31 December 31 December
hierarchy 2019 2018

RZZE-hE RIZE-N\E
AREBE +=A=+—-B +=ZA=+-H
B HAREE HAREE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FAT
Properties located vRiNalEl: ok ES Level 3
in the PRC B 39,861 47,559
The above investment properties are depreciated on a LR ENEZEATFXREER
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: ENTE -
Buildings 30 years
BF 304
21. GOODWILL 21. &
2019 2018
—E-hFE  ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
At 1 January R—H—H 1,050,965 1,044,293
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary P U i — &1k B A 7 ifl 25 4= - 82,300
Impairment loss recognised in the year & N E) R E E TR (15,000) (48,000)
Exchange adjustments B 5, 3 28 (10,470) (27,628)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,025,495 1,050,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

21. GOODWILL (continued) 21. BHEE)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to six (2018: six) individual cash-generating
units (CGUs), comprising four (2018: four) subsidiaries in
the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials segments, one subsidiary in the
manufacturing of laminated paper segment and one
subsidiary in the sales of RFID products segment.
Goodwill amounted to HK$80,775,000 (2018:
HK$82,300,000) resulted from acquisition of
manufacturing of paper packaging materials of CGU-6, of
which HK$35,541,000 (2018: HK$36,212,000) was
allocated to CGU-1 as CGU-1 is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, resulting from cost
saving on raw materials supplied by CGU-6. The carrying
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2019 allocated
net of impairment losses recognised to these unites are
as follows:

HREAAMS  BEESERER
B(ZZF—N\F: XA @ERReE
FEN - BEOREREERESE
MEBEMESBHEE(ZZE—N
F OB MBAR - HEEAEKD
1R — RSB B N B LA K 85 BT 4A
FIERD B —HEHB AR - i
ReEEBEMN-6(RERBDEME)
FITEE A W72 5 80,775,00078 7T (=
T — )\ £ : 82,300,000/ 7T) - H b
85,541,000 w( = T — J\ F:
36,212,000 7T) n L ER S ELE
i1 RERBRESELEN -6HE
RMEAEIERA - BEReEE
BA-1AZEREGHELENHRR
wme R E—NF+-_A=+—8
R ERREE (R EERREEE)
EESBLEMABEMNT -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette ENffll 5 83 7 /2 5 5
packages and related materials: AR
CGU-1 WeEESAM 1 839,460 846,172
CGU-2 WeEEEMN-2 126,342 128,346
CGU-3 HWeEEHM-3 2,675 18,352
CGU-6 e EESAM-6 45,234 46,088
1,013,711 1,038,958
Manufacturing of laminated paper: RIEE A
CGU-4 WeEEHM-4 363 370
Sales of RFID products: SHEFTIERAIER ¢
CGU-5 WeEEEMN-S 11,421 11,637
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,025,495 1,050,965
2019FF5k BHHERBEIRERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE—=

21. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs arising from
printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials, manufacturing of laminated paper and
sales of RFID products were determined individually
based on value in use calculations. The value in use
calculations used discounted future cash flow model
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 13.25%
(2018: 14.77%) for CGUs arising from printing and
manufacturing of cigarette packages and related
materials and manufacturing of laminated paper, and
14.79% (2018: 15.90%) for CGU arising from sales of
RFID products. Cash flows beyond five-year period is
extrapolated using a steady growth rate from 3.0% .
Cash flow projections for the CGUs are based on the
expected terminal growth rate, gross margin and sales
growth rate during the budget period, which were
determined based on past performance of the Group and
the management’s expectations for the market
development.

CGU-1

During the year ended 31 December 2018, due to the
effect of continuous decrease in revenue resulted from
the drop in average selling price across various products
tiers and market share in Chinese cigarette packaging
industry as a consequence of mandatory tendering
system in China tobacco industry, and the change of
product structure of CGU-1, its value in use is adversely
impacted and decreased to HK$1,768,575,000 as at 31
December 2018. During the year ended 31 December
2019, due to the expansion of market share and the
strategic vertical integration into manufacturing of paper
package materials which successfully improve the
performance of CGU-1, the management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment on CGU-1 (2018:
HK$48,000,000). If the discount rate increases by 5% to
13.91% (2018: 15.5%), while other parameters remain
constant, an impairment of goodwill of HK$nil (2018:
further impairment of HK$96,355,000) would be
recognised.

—NEFT-A=1+—HILHFE

21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

21. GOODWILL (continued) 21. BHEE)

CGU-3

Due to the effect of the drop in average selling price
across various products tiers and the change of product
structure of CGU-3, its value in use is adversely impacted
and decreased to HK$91,392,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019. The directors of the Company have
consequently determined impairment of goodwill directly
related to CGU-3 amounting to HK$15,000,000 (2018:
HK$nil). The impairment loss has been included in profit
or loss in the other gains and losses line item.

If the discount rate increases by 5% to 13.9% (2018:
15.5%), while other parameters remain constant, a
further impairment of goodwill of HK$2,675,000 (2018:
HKSnil), an impairment of property, plant and equipment
of HK$1,538,000 (2018: HK$nil) and an impairment of
right-of-use assets of HK$144,000 (2018: HK$nil) would
be recognised respectively.

Except to CGU-1 and CGU-3 as analysied above,
management believes that any reasonably possible
changes in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of respective CGUSs.

HEeELEN-3
HE-_Z-hF+-_A=+—H8I#F
E AR SERBEINTEEETH®
MESEFBM-INERGEHERTN
g HERABEIITAEEI RS
%£01,892,0008 7L c AL AAAFE
EEHRTHRSEAEN-SHEZAH
B PR B 15,000,000 7L (ZZ— N\
F BT o REBEBEITABEE
TEAb WS R BB -

WMPTIR EIEINE5% E13.9% (=T — )\
F:15.5%) MEMBHERFTE - 8
7 B W SR P B HYE — 2URE 2,675,000
BIT(ZZE—NF:TEL) WHE -
i 5= K2 5% 45 /9 50 1B 1,538,000 78 7T (=
T—N\F BB UREREEEN
WAE144,0008 T (ZE—N\F: TF
JT) °

B EXFro TR e EEEMA -1 R
TELEBEM-35 BEEMRE - EMA
HEBRROEMNEEAIEZH T E
BeELrBEUNEROIRAEBRRSES
EEBEM A AT O AREE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22 BEEE

Customer Licenses
relationship and franchises Total
EFBE HBRRISHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
COST A
At 1 January 2018 n-Z—-NE—H—H 456,749 9,149 465,898
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —REH B AR 21,305 - 21,306
Exchange adjustments B 5, 5 & (5,966) (555) 6,521)
At 31 December 2018 NZE—NEF
+=-A=+—H 472,088 8,594 480,682
Write off iis (79,042) - (79,042)
Exchange adjustments B 3 3B (35) (150) (185)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 393,011 8,444 401,455
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2018 R—ZE—N\F—HA—H 270,979 1,044 272,023
Charge for the year FARX 46,314 445 46,759
Exchange adjustments PEE 3 AR (1,708) (157) (1,865)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=—A=+—H 315,585 1,332 316,917
Charge for the year FARFAXZ 49,756 434 50,190
Write off HisH (79,042) - (79,042)
Exchange adjustments [E H & (10) (23) (39)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=-A=+—H 286,289 1,743 288,032
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF
+=-—A=+—H 106,722 6,701 113,423
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=1+—H 156,503 7,262 163,765
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 22 BEEE &)
For the purpose of impairment testing, customer HREAEAMS  EFPBEERSTAM
relationship has been included in two (2018: five) B(ZZ=E—N\F: 5E)ERREE
individual CGUs, comprising two (2018: four) subsidiaries HEL BEIRREEREBE
in the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages EKE@AMHESHEORE(ZFT— N
and related materials segments and none of (2018: one) F [ KB AR MEEE SR
subsidiary in the manufacturing of laminated paper DEHER(ZZE—N\F: —[H)HK
segment. The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at BRE] - RZE—NEF+_A=*+—
31 December 2019 allocated to these unites are as HWEFEEREECESEREM
follows: AT -

2019 2018

—E-hFE  ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Printing and manufacturing of cigarette E[Jffl & 3% 7 /& 6 % [

packages and related materials TR R
CGU-1 REEEBA -1 93,024 134,352
CGU-2 REeEABM-2 - 1,367
CGU-3 ReEABR-3 - 461
CGU-6 REEEBAN-6 13,698 20,240
106,722 156,420
Manufacturing of laminated papers: RUIEE A -
CGU-4 REEAEBR -4 - 83
At 31 December nNt+—_HA=+—H 106,722 156,503
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives.
Except that the intangible asset of CGU-6 is amortised
basing on the proportion of estimated revenue for each
year to the projected gross revenue from these existing
customers, other intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Customer relationship
Licenses and franchises

10 years
20 years

Included in intangible assets represent customer
relationship acquired in the acquisition of #3135 £ EN
& BR 2 7 Yangfeng Printing & Packaging Co., Ltd in
2012, which has been absorbed by ;FIIEI ENFEH R A
7] Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd (“Kecai”) and the
acquisition of FEIT £ B2EM KGR A A Shenzhen
Jinshengcai Package Material Co., Ltd (“Jinshengcai”) in
2018. The acquisition of the customer base has allowed
the Group to stabilise the revenue base from packaging
and printing business. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the customer relationship acquired in a
business combination in 2009 which has been fully
amortised was written off.

The revenue and the consumption of economic benefits
of the customer relationship of CGU-6 are highly
correlated as the fair value of these customer relationship
as at acquisition date was determined based on
contracts and anticipated contracts with these
customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —Z—hE+ -1

=t—HIFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. REEE R AR
2019 2018
—EB-hEF — N\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of investment, unlisted SERKA - JELET 302,639 332,874
Share of post-acquisition profits DB R R E MR
and other comprehensive income, Y25 (1% 2 W% &8.)
net of dividends received 125,781 157,258
Disposal of partial equity interest in & — 5 & A &) 20 Ak
an associate - (30,235)
Exchange adjustments PE L (5,175) 707
423,245 460,604
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had RZE—NFRZE—NF+F
interests in the following associates: = -f— B AX&E E/\ LA B 2N 7]
EEER
Place and country of
Proportion of ownership establishment/ Registered
Name of entity interest directly held by the Group  business capital Principal activity
BREE AEBEERERERESLA B/ e RER TMBEE FEER
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\F
BELEIBERA 31% 31% PRC RMB163,052,000 Provision for cigarette
(Changde Jinpeng Prlnt\ng Co., Ltd.) F AR¥163,052,0007C  printing package
(“Changde Jinpeng”) services
(M#E28)) RUEFERI 0 %R
KELHED D ENEERAR 40% 40% PRC RMB30,000,000 Developing for intelligent
(Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi Intelligence H AR#30,000,0007C  printing services
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.) BRE 8RR

(“Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi")
([REEBER])
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23.
The financial information of the Group’s associates are
prepared using uniform accounting policies in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The
associates are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. The summarised
financial information in respect of the Group’s associate
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with

REE N NER (8)

7N 5% (B Bt = R ) B A B R R B
AEERAN S BER — B gat
BUR#m 2L - B2 R R MERIAR
ZEFAMBHRMARAR - KK B
LRBNFHERBREIINMT -
NTHBEERBERRIEE BB
BELEARHEOB 22 MBHRE
PIREHR ©

HKFRSs.
Changde Jinpeng BEESE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Current assets MBEE 740,691 860,899
Non-current assets EREEE 822,842 914,433
Current liabilities FBA (217,243) (320,308)
Non-current liabilities FnEBEaE (7,769) (7,477)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Revenue U zs 1,033,110 1,220,729
Profit for the year F N A 145,739 184,927
Dividends received from the FREUEEE R R RS
associate during the year 73,228 77,731
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REEE NRIIRER (&)
Changde Jinpeng (continued) BEESE(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt E R E EmRN RS B S R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the TERRBE R FEANREERD
associate recognised in the consolidated financial HEE -
statements:
2019 2018
—E-AF  ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Net assets of the associate BENREEFE 1,338,521 1,447,547
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEREEE N 7] HY
interest in the associate BB REREZR L 31% 31%
The Group’s share of net assets RNEED(HEEZ A EH
of the associate BEFE 414,942 448,740
Goodwill S 7,657 7,911
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBREZERRIMNERZD
interest in the associate SRmEE 422,599 456,651
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZEZ—ZT— NF+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REE NTINER (&)
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi RIBRHEER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current assets mENEE 5,654 7,480
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,996 4,968
Current liabilities mENB & (7,035) (2,565)
2019 2018
—E-RAFE ZZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Revenue Ygs 8,623 12,630
Loss for the year FAEE (8,570) (14,146)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMEE(FX) K
income for the year (302) 705
Total comprehensive expense FAZEHR TR
for the year (8,872) (13,441)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt ER B E mR AR A
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the RIEZNEEZ N7 ““EE’] BEmEED
associate recognised in the consolidated financial HEE -
statements:
2019 2018
—E-hE —\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TFET
Net assets of the associate BMENTNEEFRE 1,615 9,883
Proportion of the Group’s ownership — Z< £ B A B & A 5] /Y
interest in the associate B ERESLL A 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERBE AT
interest in the associate M EEHE 646 3,953

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

24. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture is as
follows:

24, R—EEELENER

ARER-HAELENRENF
B

2019 2018
—E-hE O —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TET
Cost of investment, unlisted WERKA - JEET 8,825 8,825
Share of post-acquisition (losses) DR EER (BE) 25 &
profits and other comprehensive Hia2mE(FEX)
(expenses) income, net of e (FkR 2 WA e
dividends received (524) 406
Exchange adjustments PE H A% (625) (476)
7,676 8,755

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had
interest in the following joint venture:

RZE-NERZE—NE+=A
=+—B ' AEERUTEEDLE
WA R

Percentage of
ownership interest/ Place and
voting rights  Country of
directly held by incorporation/ Registered
Name of entity the Group business capital Principal activity
AEEEERE 2RI/
BERES SEBY
EREB REERSNE KER ERRE FEER
FMRHERBAR AR A 49% PRCHE RMB15,000,000  Developing 2D Barcodes
(Shenzhen Keju Internet Technology Note AR%15,000,0007  and 020 solutions
Company Limited (“Keju”)) ([RHE]) (i BR-_BHERO0HAAE

Note: The Group hold 49% of ownership interest of Keju. However,
under a shareholders’ agreement, the Group has the joint control
over Keju because the director resolution will be effective only
when approved by all directors.

MiaE : REBRBRIE49% ARz - A
RBEBR W - NEBEHRHUES K RES
B REAEREARRALBESIE
R -
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24. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 24,
Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

R—EEEEFRNER®)
AEBAEELENVHERRRH
FIEATS - AT B ER B ERERE
BEVBHRESENRENEGZELE
AR MR

BEMCXERBREINZEFRAY
BHRERAR

2019 2018
—E-hEFE  —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Current assets mEEE 17,222 20,739
Non-current assets ERBHEE 197 202
Current liabilities mENAE (1,753) (3,074)
The above amounts of assets and T EERBESSE
liabilities include the following: BIEATEIE
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS ZMHEIER 15,354 12,711
Current financial liabilities nBeMmBE(CTEREES R
(excluding trade and other At JEA IR A N Bt )
payables and provision) - (897)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

24. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

24, R—EEELENERS B

2019 2018
—E-hE  —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Revenue Wz 5,823 25,044
(Loss) profit for the year FA(E8)EF (1,898) 1,271
Other comprehensive income FRNEMPE R
for the year 303 927
Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2E(AX) WERHE
income for the year (1,595) 2,198
2019 2018
—E-hE O —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation P I 5 (38) (22)
Interest income FEWA 153 134
Income tax expense FR8Rif 2 (48) (95)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

24. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

24, R—EEELENERS B

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

B R R B AR A B S R
KRR B RSN REED
H155 -

2019 2018

—E-NEF —FE-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Net assets of the joint venture BETENEEFE 15,666 17,867

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBRE SR FER

interest in the joint venture BRSO 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s KEBREEEMNER

interest in the joint venture BREE 7,676 8,755

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Raw materials R4 R 151,272 159,163

Work in progress T2 327 453

Finished goods SR TR 9,172 4,150

160,771 163,766
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During the year, there was a decrease in the net
realisable value of certain raw materials due to stock
surplus. As a result, a recognition of write-down on
obsolete inventories of HK$1,053,000 (2018:
HK$592,000) due to the decrease of net realisable value
has been recognised in the current year.

FR-BEFEMEREIRFER
EFERAKMAERLD - Bt -
AN S HER AT B3R F B R ) BB
PR E 17 &5 MU 1,053,000 7T (=
T— \4F : 592,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. E5EWRE

2019 2018
—B-nE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Trade receivables B S rIERIE
— third parties —F=75 567,355 546,799
— an associate — — Rt &N T 4,229 9,827
571,584 556,626
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (13,876) (11,989)
557,708 544,637

As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$786,131,000.

The amount due from a related party derived from the
company controlled by a director.

The Group allows a credit period of 60 days to 90 days
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables presented based on the date of
delivery goods/invoice date at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated revenue recognition dates
except for receivables arising from printing of cigarette
packages and manufacturing of laminated papers which
are recognised over time upon application of HKFRS 15.

R-_ZE—N\F—HA—B ' kEEF
BHIHE 5 EWFIE & 786,131,000
HBIT ©

W —R@ESFIAKRE —RES
PREBIE AT -

AEERETHESEPOHENH
MEEH - UTRARHmERREX
NEmBE 8 BRA (RS
RAHMEE  EXERTEMB R
52 RIS 16 5% 1% BE 5 ) e 2 0 ETL
BEBE RBEE S A RBUGRIAR
5N 2518 H UG IRH BRI D AT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E—-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

0-90 days 0Z90H 502,367 476,933
91-180 days 91180 H 36,188 30,446
181-365 days 1812365 H 4,842 17,812
Over 365 days Hi®365H 28,187 31,435
571,584 556,626
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, total bills received amounting
to HK$21,312,000 (31 December 2018: HK$10,881,000)
are held by the Group for future settlement of trade
receivables due from third parties. All bills received by the
Group are with a maturity period of less than one year.

Based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit
loss experience of these debtors, including all available
forward looking information and expected settlements,
the Group does not consider default has occurred
despite the contractual payments are overdue more than
90 days due to these customers are mainly state-owned
cigarette companies with strong financial positions. The
management of the Group considers default occurred
when the debtors get into financial difficulty or the
debtors do not repay any trade receivables though the
Group has pursuited for several times, which indicate the
Group may not collect these trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$57,407,000 (2018: HK$71,562,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$21,472,000 (2018:
HK$45,934,000) has been past due 90 days or more.

Other than bill received amounting to HK$21,312,000
(2018: HK$10,881,000), the Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out
in note 42.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

26. EZEWFIE (&)

RZFE—-—NF+_A=+—H &K
SERACEWEEHE 21,312,000
BLT(ZE—-N\F+ZA=+—8":
10,881,000/ 7T) « At A& &EH &
WE=FEBS&EH AEBEFFAL
WEENEIBAH DR —F -

RIEASEEHZERUERTBERE
EEBCK(BEMER AAELEE
MRFEMER) R ARRER
FX2AUKAREENEGER
~ A BMER R E BB E90
B AEETERZBED KK
EEEERS EEBABIRE
MBRHESEBALEEREMNE
SRBFIA(REAREE ZER)
REAED  BRARES KRR
[Bl% % 8 5 R WEUA -

RZZE—hAhF+-_A=+—H ' =&
SEEBESBEUNGREBERBIENRSE
H B 2 %8 B BR [ 42 18 /& 57,407,000
BIT(ZZ—)\F : 71,562,000/ 7T)
MEWER - EEBEEHRE R -
21,472,000 w( = T — )\ F:
45,934,000/ 7T) E @ HI90H sk A E ©

B & #21,312,0008 T( —ZT — N\
% :10,881,000/% 70 ) B B W ZE &
I AEBUERZSEHIFET
ARG o

BHE_Z—NAFER-_E—NF+=
A=+—HULEFEMNE S ERKFIE
BEF G BERHITE42 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

27. CONTRACT ASSETS 27. BNEE

2019 2018
—E-AF ZZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Contract assets: BHEE:

Printing of manufacturing of cigarette ENffll & Slik & /& 6 5 &
packages and related materials sl 168,760 163,460
Manufacturing of laminated papers — &iEE & K 2,095 2,142
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEERE (131) (217)
170,724 165,385

As at 1 January 2018, contract assets amounted to
HK$64,829,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivering the goods to the customers at
the reporting date on provision of printing of cigarette
package and manufacturing of laminated papers. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the products are delivered and accepted by the
customers.

The increase of contract assets during the year ended 31
December 2018 is mainly due to the customers who had
placed more orders to the Group at the year end.

The consideration is payable on the earlier of the delivery
and acceptance of the finished goods by customers or
notice from the customer to cancel the order. If the
customer cancels the order, the Group is immediately
entitled to receive payment for work done to date.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out
in note 42.

R-ZE—N\F—A—B: ' AHEE
5 64,829,00038 7T, °

BREETEEANEBWIE K
MARETRABKENER - R
ASBEBEREANERTFAEBRBS
BHREFRINEHBERKER
REGEE GRS RERMOARER
BME ° B8 REFRSERTE
BRHEERBRELEZRWFR -
AEERERNRINERLEEP &
PRBENEEBRZE SRR
Ig o

HE_ZT-N\F+A=+—H1
FEMABHNEERMEMN 2MH
REFPRERANEEZETLE ZE]
BRTEL

REEARREEXNERERRETF
BEMEE P E L BURR] ERME X
e mEPBUBR]E - AEBE K
BRWEGZ S B AT 5e i TERY R
Ig o

B Z—NEr-_FT—N\F+=
A=+—HBULEFEMEHEERE
FHEEEIBEAMIFE 42 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

28. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 28. HMWEWRIE AAIRERT
AND REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS EBEF2
2019 2018
—E-NEF —FE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Receivables from disposal of HE—RHBE QTN
partial equity interest in an associate A% fEUZ Z I8 - 21,691
Refundable deposits to suppliers TR TFHEREEREFH
and customers AiRIEE] S 7,498 9,669
Prepayment for material purchase BERMEATENRIE 5,487 10,223
Staff advances BT 4,086 3,716
Rental, utility and sundry deposits e  ARRMEZS 2,069 2,869
Tax receivables U TE 9,817 6,661
Others HAb 6,979 5,075
35,936 59,904

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
including refundable deposits to suppliers and customers,
staff advance, rental, utility and sundry deposits and
others for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
are set out in note 42.
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29.

30.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 0.30% (2018: 0.001% to 0.35%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates at 0.30% (2018: 0.30% to 0.35%) per annum.
Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities of bills payables
granted to the Group. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bills payables.

Bank overdrafts carry interest at market rates which
range from 2.82% to 4.77% (2018: 1.88% to 5.68%) per
annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and bank overdrafts that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are stated below:

29.

30.

FEAS M B 2 R IR IR 2R RKOR

BRERARERR 2ERARE

EEBRITER RITESRR
R MRITEX

IRITERIETISFFIENF0.001%
£030%(=ZF — /\F : 0.001% =
0.35%) 7T B » BEHIFR 717 IR E
FE M KR0I0%( =T — N\ F:
0.30% £0.35%) 51 & - EHE P RIT
BFRIECHEBE FRITUERAER
N EIEATERIRITREMNTR -
EEBRITF SR EERBEER
= EREARRR o

RITBEIEMHEFEFENT2.82%
FATT%( ZZF — N\ F :1.88% =
5.68%) st 8. °

BA (3 £ ) B BB A T B MR LA S
S HE A E B B IR -
PTEBRIRS A RBITE SR
mF -

2019 2018

—E-nE —F-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FH T FHT

HK$ BT 6,285 52,039
United States Dollars (“US$”) FEx([%5t)) 30 858
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. EREAKE
2019 2018
—2-nE ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Trade payables &S EAHE 226288 220676

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

NTARBEHRRZEZEHZT
B S RN FRIANRE DT -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0-30 days 0E30H 118,923 120,043
31-90 days 31E90H 77,417 70,925
91-180 days 91 £ 180H 12,286 19,928
181-365 days 181 E 365 H 4,079 17,095
Over 365 days H#BiE365H 13,583 1,685
226,288 229,676

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30
days to 180 days. The Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents sufficient to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

As at 31 December 2019, bills amounting to
HK$5,649,000 (2018: HKS$nil) were transferred to
suppliers for settling trade payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HWENRERETER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Other tax payables Hib e Fi1E 29,603 32,417
Other payables and accruals HippE AN EETE 25,135 20,880
Salary payable ANk 26,887 25,529
Construction payables FE TSR TR 7,351 34,594
Government grants BT B & 2,319 2,533
Deposits received from suppliers 2 HtEEETS 732 448
Contract liabilities EHEE 541 144
92,568 116,545
As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to RZZE—N\F—A—H B48EAE
HK$857,000. 857,0008 7T °
33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE
2019 2018
—2-hE ZEF)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Bank borrowings comprise: IRITEEBRE
Unsecured 45 4T 4 256,462 620,084
Carrying amount repayable based BEEEEFAHAR
on scheduled repayment dates: AR EERAREE ¢
Within one year —F R 256,462 549,905
More than one year, but not HBR—FERMFN
more than two years - 18,750
256,462 568,655
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

33. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

33. RITEE (&)

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
The carrying amount of bank BERENREEKR
borrowings that contain a FtAREBEE)EBZA
repayment on demand clauses R TEREEEZER
(shown under current liability) RITIEEREREE
but repayable:
Within one year —&FR - 13,714
More than one year, but not HBR—FERRFN
more than two years - 13,714
More than two years, but not BEMFERAEFKN
more than five years - 24,001
- 51,429
256,462 620,084
Less: Amounts due within one year B R —FARIEE A
shown under current liabilities mPAaENSRE 256,462 601,334
Amounts shown under SFAERBAGEN S
non-current liabilities - 18,750
Breakdown of the bank borrowings: RITEENSE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELBEE 55,875 41,488
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE 200,587 578,596
256,462 620,084
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

33. BANK BORROWINGS (continueqd) 33. RITEEH)

The Group’s floating-rate borrowings are mainly subject AEEZEBEFERPEARIR
to interest in a range at 100% to 110% of RMB THRAMARBEEREEREEHE
Benchmark Loan Rates issued by the People’s Bank of 100% £ 110% * R B 2 B R 17H [
China, Loan Prime Rate issued by the National Interbank ZEHRESILBINERERI XL
Funding Center of the PRC and Hong Kong Interbank EABITRAERB(EBRBRITRE
Offered Rate (“HIBOR’) in a range at HIBOR plus 1.8% to ’E D) M1.8%E33%FT B o A&
3.3%. The effective interest rates on the Group’s bank ERITEENERMERNT :

borrowings are as follows:

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —T-N\F
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 4.4% to £ 6.5% 4.6%to = 6.5%
Floating-rate borrowings HEEBE 2.9% to £ 6.5% 2.4%to = 59%
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in AREBUEBAEBREEINGEEEIA
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant SN EEETEMRITEERT ¢
group entities are set out below:
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FH&T
HK$ AT 195,000 527,586
EUR BT = 1,637
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEAE
2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
FHBT
Lease liabilities payable: ENTHERE :
Within one year —E R 4,354
Within a period of more than one year B —FERMEA
but not more than two years 551
4,905
Less: Amount due for settlement with B 128 A AR ERE I
12 months shown under current SFARE B ERNFIE
liabilities (4,354)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R 12 @ A& B EREM WA A
shown under non-current liabilities EMBI B ERRIA 551
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies U EBEREEK INNE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group MEHEMAEAENT ¢
entities are set out below:
HK$’000
FET
As at 31 December 2019 R_E—hFE+=—_A=+—H 4,053
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

35.

36.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 35. BUS#EEE
2019 2018
—E-hE  —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Arising from government grants: REBR#HDE
Current liability mEAaE
(included in other payables (G AHAb e 5RIE K&
and accruals) JEErER) 2,319 2,533
Non-current liability ELiEIN=E= 27,297 30,175
29,616 32,708

The government subsidies received related to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the PRC.
The amount has been treated as deferred income. The
amount is transferred to income on a systematic basis
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. This
policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current
year of HK$2,523,000 (2018: HK$2,634,000). As at 31
December 2019, an amount of HK$29,616,000 (31
December 2018: HK$32,708,000) remains to be
amortised.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

36.

EWBFE e EPEYE
MEREEER ZRERERAE
A o ZRIER BB EEMEE
REHABRFHEREREZRA - %
R BEURF EHERUA 2,523,000
& (= F — N\ F :2,634,000%
L) RZE—NF+ZA=1+—
B ©%29,616,0008L(=ZZ— )\
F+-A=+—H 32,708,000/
TL) B o

ELEBIREE AE

AR B M BERNBREZIIME - &
TELEHREENABEEEE -
AT RMPERE M S ELEHR B
EREVAFT

2019 2018
—E-nE —B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RICFR B E (1,940) (200)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIBAE 69,518 68,565
67,578 68,365
2019FF5k BHHERBEIRERAR]
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36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 36. ELEHIEEE A&
(continued)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) UNTAERAFERBEFENDE
recognised and movements thereon during the current REZELEMBEBE(BEE) ARE
and prior years: BE)
Undistributable Timing  Inventories
profits of difference  provisions/ Accelerated
Intangible  subsidiaries/ Government ECL  onrevenue salary tax Tax
assets associate grants provision  recognition payable depreciation loss Total
KEAR,/
BENTH BHEE  KERIN FERG/ il
BYEE AOREN  BNEBE FERE KEZZ EffEe RERE HEFB b

HK§'000  HKS'000  HKE000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000 - HKE'000
TiER TR TERL TR TERL TiER TiERL TiER iR

At1 January 2018 RZE-N\F

—-A-f 24,236 36,463 (5,566) (1,519 2,563 - - - 56,167

Acquisttion of a subsidiary Y& —Fefft B2 7 5,326 - - (39 - (1,048) - - 4,239
(Credit) charge to (GEA) Mk B

profitor loss (5,652) 14,985 395 (332) 6,698 301 - - 16,395

Reversal upon payment A4 4l - (6,516) - - - - - - (6,516)

Exchange differences ERER - (2,099) 265 91 (384) 207 - - (1,920)

At31December 2018 RZZ-N\&

+-A=1+-H 23910 42,833 (4,906) (1,799 8,867 (540) - - 68,365

(Credit) charge to (GNEIls =
profit or loss (7,020) 22,163 378 (419) (847) 170 2,726 (674) 16,477
Reversal upon payment A3z 745 - (16,408) - - - - - - (16,408)
Exchange differences X % - (788) 86 121 (152) (93) (40) 10 (856)

At31December 2019 R-E-NE

+zf=+-8 16890 47800 (42 (007 7,868 @6y 2686 @64 67578
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RB|EMK AEBBERPHREA
tax losses of HK$6,871,000 (2018: HK$24,000) available & 186,871,000 T( =T — )\ &
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has 24,0008 7T ) AT HIRSH ARG A » 2
been recognised in respect of HK$4,427,000 (2018: BB BB 184,427,0008 T ( — &
HK$nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been —N\F:TBT)ERELERIEE
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$2,444,000 o B PR ARE B 2RR R TE A -
(2018: HK$24,000) due to the unpredictability of future I # 5 8% T2,444,00078 T( = &
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are — J\%F 1 24,0007 7T ) FERIE LT 1E
losses of HK$2,444,000 (2018: HK$24,000) that will BE - AEINEBFBBRBELNZ
expire in 2024. T P04 B HAMY /E518 2,444,000 %8 7T

—E—)\F : 24,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B
Number of Nominal
shares value
RO E H{E
HK$’000
FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &M% 1B 0.005 /& JT A & A%
At 1 January 2018, R_E-N\F—-—HA—B "
31 December 2018 and —ET-\F+=AH
31 December 2019 —t+—BERZZE—AF
+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &M% 18 0.005 /& JT A & i A%
At 1 January 2018, RZZFE—-NF—H—H8"
31 December 2018 and —E—-N\F+=A
31 December 2019 —t+—BER-Z—AF
+=—A=+—H 1,567,884,634 7,839

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/
ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARY

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 13 July 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests of Jinshengcai for consideration of
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$148,018,000). This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$82,300,000. Jinshengcai is
engaged in the manufacture of cigarette packages
and related materials. Jinshengcai was acquired so
as to economise the cost of printing of cigarette
packages to cater for increasingly competitive
environment of traditional cigarette packaging
industry.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the

38. WEE—RIMIBARMEBZQR

HYFE SN IR R

(a)

WE—EHELQR
RZE—N\FEA+=H ' &K
%= B W B 2 % 100% % #E -
K& A A R # 130,000,000 7T
(FEE R #7148,018,0008 1) °
ERREEFERBEEAR-
AREMEENHESEAR
82,300,000/8 7T ° & A F M=
BERE R RARBEME - I
BeAXBEESHEREBREN
BIAKA - LA EHREEBE
THEAZHUNFFIRIE -

RUHE B BIPT s R B 2 P

date of acquisition are as follows: WROBEWT :
HK$°000
FTHExT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BEKERE 6,363
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE B 1,087
Intangible assets BmEE 21,305
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 58 42,163
Trade receivables 2 5 EWEIA 49,192
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits E f fE YL B ~ FEA B iR 4 518
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 3,873
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables =) ANE/ e (44,476)
Other payables and accruals HAb S RIE R FEET & A (8,981)
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE (5,326)
65,718
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/
ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)
The fair value of trade receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$49,192,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade receivables
acquired amounted to HK$49,454,000 at the date
of acquisition.

38. WEE—REMBARMEBZQR

HYEE MR (48

(a)

WE—EHEAE (&)

B ZRIWNGERKERHNHA
BB £ 49,192,000/ T ° %
LIRS 5B KIBRUE
H B 8 & #4818 & 49,454,000
I

Goodwill arising on acquisition HWEmEENEE
HK$°000
FERT
Consideration transferred FregE M (E 148,018
Less: net assets acquired B PTINEE E E R E 65,718
Goodwill arising on acquisition PR U B T 22 A ) R 82,300
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Jinshengcai KBSAENERSRE FE
HK$°000
FTET
Cash consideration paid 2RSS RE 148,018
Less: cash and cash equivalent B TR RREEE
balances acquired JH B &8 3,873
144,145
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$493,000 Iy B 48 B Bk 75 493,0003% T B

have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an
expense during the year ended 31 December 2018,
within the “administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

WAEEREFRNRER - WRE
22— N\F+=-A=+—H
HFEAFAEEREMER
Wk (1T BB
REFAZ -

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/
ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(a)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Jinshencai
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Jinshencai. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets. None of the
goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 is HK$7,295,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Jinshengcai.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
includes HK$61,528,000 generated from
Jinshengcai.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, total group revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have been HK$1,409 million,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would have been HK$232 million. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

38. WEE—RIMIBARMEBZQR

YRR SR A (47

(a)

Wi — R E DA ()

B A BF BB ZS B R 4 Il 4 it
B AHWEEAXELER
o Jtih LA NBORE
BB A B T H 1 (R A€
WABE  RRMHEREE
ARANEENENSE - &
EMBANT G A BB & E
ENEASEMABEBEE
VHER - nFRBSEHELEN
B ETERT T REEMIA o

HE_Z—-N\F+-A=+—
HIEFERNZMNBESATEE
AN 2 7 BT EE A #Y 7,295,000 78
TeBE_ZE—NF+=A
—T-HLEFENKREEES
FHFFTE A H961,528,000/8 7T °

W ER —_T—N\F—HA—H
Bk BE_T-NF+=
A=+ BLEFENEERRZE
42 1% A 1,409,000,000 % 7T -
mMmEBEE_ZFT—-—NEF+=A4
=+ BLEFEMNGEFAA
232,000,000/ 7T © 5E B KHE
HFAPARE  ARURBERRH
WER-_ZTE—N\F—AF—HE
TERMBRAT  AEBEERE
BRI AR TIER
REBERTER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. WIE—MMBELAR HERAE

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN HEEIMNIRRE (&)

SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b) Acquisition of additional equity interest in (b) WEEHIE D RNEEINR#E
subsidiary

In December 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with a shareholder of Kecai, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to acquire
the remaining 0.51% equity interest at a
consideration of RMB3,190,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,618,000). The consideration
on acquisition was paid in cash. An amount of
HK$10,886,000 (being the proportionate share of
the carrying amount of the net assets of Kecai) has
been transferred from non-controlling interests. The
difference of HK$7,268,000 between the decrease
in the non-controlling interests and the consideration
paid has been credited/charged to statutory
reserves, other reserves, exchange reserve and
retained profits.

In August 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with a shareholder of Zhaotong Antong
Package Material Co., Ltd. FAEZ BB MG
XA (“ZTAT”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to acquire the remaining 20% equity
interest at a consideration of RMB5,321,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,186,000). The
consideration on acquisition was paid in cash. An
amount of HK$6,651,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets of
ZTAT) has been transferred from non-controlling
interests. The difference of HK$465,000 between
the decrease in the non-controlling interests and the
consideration paid has been debited to other
reserves.

RZE—NF+ZA A&EHE
HARRNFEZEMN B R AR
—ERRFI M E - AREA
R #3,190,0007T ( /8 & % 4
3,618,000/8 7T ) W HE#£ T 0.51%
B WERBUARES T -
BEEREZERBH
10,886,000 % 7T (BN FE (G BLHRF
BEERBEE/NLA)BIFKIE © JE
TR DR R E D Y
B &R Z%7,268,000/8 7T
BRtA/HMBEERHE  Hib
i ERREERRE R -

RZE—NFENA AEEH
AAGRIEEEMBARBBELR
BEEMAERAR(BBL
B —RBRET LB AR
B AR#5,321,000 7T (#E %
#76,186,0007% 7T ) W B &8 T
20%HxtE - WEERENERESX
e BIFIERERERE A
6,651,0008 T (B E(E R B %
BEEEREEMNLH) AR
T8 o JEYE AR ES R A A BiER B
BB & 8 & 58 465,000
BB e b -

2019F F3 EREREBEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 11 January 2018, the Group disposed of its entire
100% equity interest in Empire Sail Limited 75 i A R 2
A] (together with its subsidiary collectively referred as the
“Disposal Group”) to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$295,000,000. The principal assets
of the Disposal Group are the property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

39. HEHB QT
RZZE—-NF—A+—HB ~&H
VAR 4 K18 295,000,000 78 T [Al— %
BYE=HHEBMAERARGER
HNBRAGHIHEERE]) 23
100% It - HESBNWEZZEER
ME - BB MEBARIEDE -

Analysis of assets and liability over which control KREEFIENEEREES T
was lost:
HK$°000
THExT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB ME&E 86,361
Investment properties REME 118,448
Other receivables H e U IR 129
Other payables H b T B (1,619)
Net assets disposed of Frit & &EF#E 203,319
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB A TS :
HK$°000
FTExT
Consideration received 2R E 295,000
Net assets disposed of FritE&EFE 203,319
Gain on disposal HEWE 91,681
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFRELEBRERANTE
Cash consideration HERE 295,000

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 40. RIREFFHE

The Group participants a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of a trustee. The Group
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,500 per person to the Scheme, which is matched
by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Company’s subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$15,094,000 (2018: HK$14,096,000) represents
contributions paid or payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

AEBAEBMBEAEAKEEZN
BHERTEEFTE G EERENK
EEEESDHERE  YHETLAE
BERNESER - ASEREEEB
BABBEFH KA HEIB5%31,500
BT BESEL S HE -

AEERTENEERS BT EKFN
BREEERAKRBHAIOXE - K
AEMBARARMHFEETED
HERKEMETE - UR@EFEH
B  AKREFLFAEINEEER
RIRBETEIEL AT FR R -

B 18 & R A 4 F 2 15,094,000
BEIL(ZZ—)\F : 14,096,000 T)
FEAREEIZFTEIRANETHAM L R R
I E A8 B VB H s B 1B T A FE A

e
oA °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

41. EXERER

AEBEEHEER  UBERAKE
BB AFELE  WEBEL
B MR REaAREE SR
RAER BEFUR  NEEH

BT -

AEENERNRBERRERSFHE(E
RIRTEEMNEERE  MKHAE
EREEEEB) RARRHEA AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. €T H
a. Categories of financial instruments a. S2RIAENES?
2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 3 $5 K A5 BRRY & B & = 789,648 954,415
Financial liabilities cREE
FVTPL BAREBEAER - 1,626
Amortised cost B EHp R 531,891 944,883
531,891 946,509

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables, purchase consideration payable for
acquisition, amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, bank borrowings, bank overdrafts
and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

SRIEBEENBEERBEE

AEENTZSRMTABREE
5 FEMCRIR ~ LAt 8 WK OR
BARBEFABENEHE
B DEMRITER RITHE
phRe EHEMNHEHE
filb FE A 5K0H - LB = IRATA
XNEERE  BNHNEAQR]
IR IR |RITIEE
RITEXNMNEERE - ZFE
BTENFBEREEMER
RE- -ZEeRITABENR
[ B3 m 5 E kR (B8R R R A
K@) - FERRMRBESR
VK - a0 fa] IR 5 5 R A
BRENR T - AEEEEE
EIENEEZEFRE - AR
RE N A U BREUE & MR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

b.

U

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s
principal subsidiaries is RMB. While most of
the Group’s operations are transacted in the
functional currency of the respective group
entities, the Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have
hedging policy in respect of the foreign
currency risk. However, the management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

42. €T R (&)
SREKRTENEERKE (&)

b.

Wik
() EERE
AEBFZMBRARNDY

EEBEABARE - @R
SEARDEHBAZERHE
ERNDREEHETR
5 AEBITETETIA
SNESHENR 5 » AR H
B B3 £ 75 B8 M E EL 2 7
BHRE o A BEE
T BRI SME R B - A
WA B 8 R E KD
E

RIS BHBERE - A&
BLAINEETENEREE

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting LEEgEREENT
date are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E2—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Assets BE
HK$ 7T 6,536 72,032
USs$ ETT 3,886 4 587
Liabilities =L
HK$ BT 201,449 548,900
EUR BT - 1,637
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency
of HK$.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 2% (2018: 5%) increase and
decrease in the RMB against HKS$,
respectively. 2% (2018: 5%) sensitivity rate
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 2% (2018: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank
balances, receivables or payables, bank
overdrafts and borrowings denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthens against
HK$. For a 2% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB
against the HK$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

42, TRET R (%)

THEREENEEREE(E)

misEkE ()
() E¥EREE)
BURE DT

REBFEARBTLER
Rz o

TRANARE L BT
BEREZEZL(ZF—N
F 5% WBERT - AE
BEBREDN - BRE
b R2%( = F — U5
5%) KR EIEE HHNEE
KAl ge BB S IB T
FRE DM E BRI LAINE
FHEMAREEERIER -
WRBRERRZ2%(—F
— )\ : 5%) S [E & &
BHEHEBRE - HRRED
e R IRITAERR - R
B TRIR A K ERTTE
X REE (LAY Be & A
SNVEMEHE) © THIER
RKRRARERLBETLIE
5 BR B R m A S & 1R
me WARERBETEE
2% (—F— \F :5%)
HEaN B EFRERTE -

2019 2018
E-NEF —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Profit for the year FEm
HK$ BT 3,255 17,879

Note: This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding bank balances, receivables, payables,
bank overdrafts and borrowings in HK$ at end of
the reporting period.

BGE b EE R X ERE mE R
B TTEHERM R AR IRTTAE
B RUWGHUR - B BR
RITBEXRMEE -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and bank borrowings (see notes 30
and 33 respectively). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its bank overdrafts and borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate and RMB Benchmark Loan Rates arising
from the Group’s HK$ and RMB denominated
bank overdrafts and borrowings.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its corresponding fixed-rate
pledged bank deposits, bank borrowings and
lease liabilities (see notes 30, 33 and 34 for
details) amounting to HK$9,476,000 (2018:
HK$11,250,000), HK$55,875,000 (2018:
HK$41,488,000) and HK$4,905,000 (2018:
HK$nil) respectively. The management will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

42. €T R (&)
SREKRTENEERKE (&)

b.
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mISEE(E)

(i)

VRSN
AEBAERSRER
REREZ Y BIRITHE
SRERITERE (D R M
FE30%33) B - NEE
B R BB ERITE R
EEMRERFFZE  UNE
EREAAREEMNER
o ARENREREN
ZEREIBETRAKE
BT R AREFHERTT
B REENEBRITR
ERENERARBEER
ERER KL E)

REBEN AR EBENER
S EHHEEERTE B X
EEFIRITER - RITHE
ErHEAGE(FBREN
30 -33K34) DBl A
9,476,000 L (=ZE— N\
111,250,000 7T ) »
55,875,000 t( = &
— \%F : 41,488,000/87T)
4,905,000/ T( = &
—N\F:ZTEx) - ERE
PR B E E R E K
=R
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates on variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. As the management considers the
exposure to interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances is insignificant due to the low level of
bank interest rate, bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis. A 100 basis points
(2018: 100 basis points) increase or decrease
is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2018: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 would have decreased/
increased by HK$1,693,000 (2018:
decreased/increased by HK$4,937,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

42, TR TR (&)
SREBRTENEERKE (&)

b.

IBmB ()
0 FIEES ()
B AT

2019FF

AT SEED T ERF
BIiRTTEENFXRRE
E o BRI RENLIR
HHREKREENZER
TEERBEFEHYRE
BEMRERZ - HREERER
B IRTT R R EIMEKFE -
RITEBFTAI TR E S
B WEBSUXE S
WHBIERITER - DT
ERF ) 2R 48 55 100 1 H 24
(ZZ — )\F 10018 &
) RREEBHAES
E AR B AT o

K FI = 12 hn 3/l 4> 100 1@

HEH(ZZ— N\F : 1001&
B2e2h) o mErA Hib e
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily
attributable to trade receivables, contract assets,
other receivables, bank balances and pledged bank
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risks associated with certain trade receivable
are backed by bills issued by reputable financial
institutions.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and contract assets under ECL
model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable,
are summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade
receivables and contract assets, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limit, credit approval, and
makes periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
receivables based on historical settlement records,
reasons for extended repayment period and past
experience. The Group only accepts bills issued or
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade
receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk
arising from the endorsed or discounted bills is
insignificant. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

NE+ZRA=+—BLFE

42. £@T R (&)
b.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 15%
(2018: 12%) and 41% (2018: 36%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the printing of cigarettes
packages segment.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on the trade
receivables and contract assets individually or
based on provisional matrix. Except for debtors with
internal credit ratings graded as P4, P5 and P6,
which are assessed for impairment individually, the
remaining trade receivables and contract assets are
grouped under a provision matrix based on shared
credit risk characteristics by reference to repayment
histories for recurring customers and current past
due exposure for the new customers.

42, TRET R (%)

b.

EREMREENBEERBEK(E)
FERBRNBERNE ()

KEEFAHEE ZEWIE K
AHEE(5B)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits

In order to minimise the credit risk on other
receivables, the management of the Group makes
periodic individual assessments on the recoverability
of receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and forward-looking
information. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on other receivables
individually.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by PRC credit rating
agencies or state-owned banks located in the PRC.

In determining the ECL for bank balances and
pledged bank deposits, the management of the
Group has taken into account the estimated default
loss rates in reference to the international credit
rating agency and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. There had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The
management of the Group has estimated the ECL
basing on the carrying amounts of bank balances
and pledged bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period multiplying the estimated default
loss rates. The Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is insignificant.

—NEFT-A=1+—HILHFE
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b.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 85%
(2018: 86%) of the total bank balances was due
from the three largest banks.

The Group is also exposed to the concentration on
geographic segment of the PRC. At 31 December
2019, approximately 99% (2018: 99%) of the
Group’s trade and other receivables are arising from
counterparties whose principal place of operations
is the PRC.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating Description
RS E IR i

42, TR TR (&)
b.

EREMREENBEERBEK(E)
FERBRNBERNE ()

At W HIERITHE R B
HIRTTIEH ()
AEEEEEETHRAR R
TTRBRBENSSR(ZFT—N
F 1 86%) KB AT -

REE T FAZME D EH LT
PEMRER  RZZT—F
+—A=Z+—8 AEEY
9% (ZF—/\F : 99%) &
5 R E A EWFRIAR B AR
REBEEMBEHNHETFS -

A& B8R ERE B EL R R AT
EBIEATER

Trade receivables/
contract assets

B ERANIE AREE

P1 The counterparty has a low risk of default,
refers to state-owned cigarette
companies

P1 HFTMENRBERE
EEEEELA

P2 Debtor frequently repays within due dates

and has no past due amounts and the
length of customer relationship is more
than three years with no default history
P2 BEBALFEINHANER - WERDHTIE
EFRRRRBB=FATEEN

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HRBEERR - ALREERE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HEMEEER - AMREERE

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

—NEFT-A=1+—HILHFE

42. €T R (&)
b.

ERAREENBEERBE(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

AW HIERITHE R B
HIRTTIFH ()

Internal Trade receivables/

credit rating Description contract assets

REEE TR R EZEWRE ARNEE

P3 Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
and has past due amounts, or the
length of customer relationship is less
than three years

P3 BERALFHEIHAREEVEANRIE - 2HBEHEEEE — ROREERE
FEFPHEEREIR=F

P4 Debtor with significant outstanding past Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
due balances which expects to be fully
settled within one year

P4 EHRR —FABRRENEAREERD THIRHEERE - ABREERE
EARHERA

P5 Debtor with significant outstanding past Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
due balances which settles from time
to time and expect to be fully settled
within two years.

P5 DB TR R M E N EBEN FHREBEEERE - REREERE
BRRBEBREANEBTA

P6 There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
credit-impaired

P6 ARBEREELREERE THIRHEERE - BREERE

P7 There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

P7 ARBERNEB AR BREMBIN TRIR M 85

MAKEEER LR U ER K
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and other receivables which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

42, TR TR (&)

EREAREENEERBE(E)
FERBRBERNE(F)

TRFAVAETEMEEBR
AHER AR EEE 5 RUKRIE
BHEE BEMRITER
RITHEBR NN S A R E AR
FEMEERR

IR AR & B &

External Internal 2019 2018
credit credit —E-NE —2-N\5
rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount  Gross carrying amount
HEE RHEE
R TR 1252 HAEREERE EHAE RHEE
Notes HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ik TiEn FiEn FET FHT
Trade receivables 26 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 448,905 355,506
BHRIE TER P1 > HREBEEEE (BERRE)
P2 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 25,384 55,930
P2 L HRREEEE (RERE)
P3 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 79,423 91,752
P3 PHEHCERE (REER)
P4 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 6,812 20,497
P4 2HRBRERE (RUREERE)
P5 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 28,789
P5 PHRBEERE (RUREERE)
P6 Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 11,060 571,584 4,152 556,626
P6 LHRAEEBE(LRETAE)
Contract assets 27 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 165,719 159,007
BHEE TER P1 PHRLACERE (REER)
P2 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 4,131 1,122
P2 LHRHCEHE (REER)
P3 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 469 5,465
P3 2 HREBEEEE (BERE)
P4 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 536 -
P4 PHRBRERR (RURERRE)
P5 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 170,855 8 165,602
P5 HRBEERE (RUREERE)
Pledged bank deposits 30 AAA N/A 12-month ECL ) 9,476 9,476 11,250 11,250
BERROER TER  12EAEHEERS
Bank balances and cash 30 AAA N/A 12-month ECL ) 201,168 201,168 355,508 355,508
ROEBRRAS TER  1EABEEERAR
Other receivables 28 N/A (Note 1)~ 12-month ECL - 20,789 20,789 43,277 43,277
H it EIHIE TEm (W31)  12EREHEEES
Refundable rental deposit N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 664 664 - -
JRERERS TER (W1)  12EREHEEESE

*

The rating is originated from PRC credit rating agencies.

* FEREFEEETREE -

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. E@MI A #E)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. At
31 December 2019, these amounts are not past due or
they have no fixed repayment terms.

2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

Provision matrix — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and
contract assets which are assessed based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2019 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with
significant outstanding and long aged balances or
credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts of
HK$17,872,000 and HK$nil in aggregate for trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December
2019 (2018: HK$53,438,000 and HK$4,131,000)
were assessed individually.

b.

EREMEENBEERBEK(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

B IER A R B E (48

GEE

1. HRAEERRERME  A%H
MABRANTRERRRENS
HRARELBELN - R=F
—hF+ZA=+—R ZELE
R 380 5 o £ (B T AR R AR

2. BEZEUHARANEEMS
AEECEABFEMBREERE
OB A B2 HITAHEE
ERAEREYE -

BB — A5 BFR
EAAEBEZERREERLF
—Ho AEBHERFER
NEE B o TREIIZR
>HEHREERB(RHREE
BE) NRIE—ZE—hE+ A
T+ —HMBHEEEFTHENE
SEVFEBEBRAENEERFER
SHER - RZTE—NF+=
A=+—B#¥ KRB ZERKKIE
MEHNEERDRESARA
17,872,000 TR EHET(ZE
— J\ 4 : 53,438,000 7T &
4,131,000 L) EBEERKE
EMRERERESRKIEREER
BEMER AEEITREBIFEE -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, E@MIT R (%)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. £REAREENEERBER(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R ET (&)
(continued)
Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued) REEEME — NES s EFFAR (&)
Gross carrying amount FREAE
2019
—E-NF
Average Trade Contract
loss rate  receivables assets
Internal credit rating ~ AEEEFTR FHERE EZREWRRE BHEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
P1 P1 0.03% 448,905 165,719
P2 P2 0.77% 25,384 4,131
P3 P3 2.64% 79,423 469
553,712 170,319
2018
—FT-)N\F
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating W= E LR FHEEER ZEFEKGIE BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
P1 P1 0.04% 355,506 159,007
P2 P2 0.78% 55,930 1,122
P3 P3 2.70% 91,752 5,465
503,188 165,594
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical settlement records, internal credit rating,
the external credit rating data and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. The
contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
contract assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group provided HK$2,141,000 (2018:
HK$2,474,000) net impairment allowance for trade
receivables and reversed HK$84,000 (2018:
provided HK$4,281,000) net impairment allowance
for contract assets, based on the provision matrix
and assessment by individually for those credit
impaired debtors or those debtors with significant
outstanding and long aged balances.

The Group assessed the loss allowances for
pledged bank deposits, other receivables and bank
balances on 12-month ECL basis. The management
of the Group considers the bank balances that are
deposited with the financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets.
The management of the Group considers bank
balances are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-
rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance was
considered as insignificant.

42. £@T R (&)
b.

EREMEENBEERBEK(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

REE — ARSI ERFAR ()
FREAME(B)
EEBRRDERELEHC
- NEEEFRLINBESR
APARBRGEE - WIREBHAN
B BERAL L BRI ERF
MRTREEERHEH R E - B 1F
&g F M= o AT A AR
FEBBANHEBEER TUE
e aMEEAEARR-HBE
B E 5 R WA K BAE R
R ER e FIt - REER
REZRUGRIANEERES
WEENEBRGENES -

BHE_T-—hhFt+=ZA=+—
HIEFE  AEEREREE
B RkEZELREEREMNE
BARZEEEAREERER
FRER AR ERS AEITERIFE
ity DRI E 5 WG IERT 12
BB 5 F 582,141,000 JT
(== — )\ : 2,474,000/ 7T)
Mot & & ERRIRAERETF
84,0008 L (=T — )\ F :
P 4,281,000 7)) ©
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ST A #E)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. £REAREENEERBER(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

FERRRBERG(E)

BfgEE — ARSI ERFAR ()
FREAME(B)
NRBTRIREBEBICTERES
U RAERERRAEEE

under the simplified approach. BHEF -
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HEHEE 2HEHEE
B (RER FR(LR
FERE) =ERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FET
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\¥—A—H
— As restated — & &7 10,117 - 10,117
Changes due to financial A-_T-\F—-A—H
instruments recognised HREMIA
as at 1 January 2018; iR g
— Transfer to credit impaired - EESHREERE (119) 115 -
— Impairment losses - ERRREER
recognised 2,152 4,154 6,306
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESSE (8,927) - (8,927)
New financial assets originated MEANEREE 5,095 - 5,095
Exchange adjustment R (485) (117) (602)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZT—N\F
+=ZRA=+—H 7,837 4,152 11,989
Changes due to financial R-F—-NF—H—H
instruments recognised BREMIA
as at 1 January 2019: MR 2E :
— Transfer to credit impaired - BEENREEHE (60) 60 -
— Impairment losses — ERRREEE
recognised - 7,017 7,017
— Impairment losses reversed - BERRESSE (7,294) - (7,294)
New financial assets originated MEANSREE 2,418 = 2,418
Exchange adjustment S (85) (169) (254)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ—NE
+ZA=1+-H 2,816 11,060 13,876
2019F 3k ERHERBIRARAR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. The Group has taken legal action
against the debtors to recover the amount due.
None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

42, TRET R (%)

EREMEENBEERBEK(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

REE — ARSI ERFAR ()
FREAME(B)
EEEMBREHABIEE
S IR PR I S R W () T 8 (3
WETS A RS B SE AW E
BF)E AEE/BIEESE
WHIE - AEBERBUERTT
BREKSABRRK - HED
i 3H ) B 5 MR IR Y 9
WITES -

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables BRI RBEERESSE
are mainly due to: ZIRA :
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in lifetime (decrease) in lifetime
ECL ECL
2HRBEEEE rHREHEEER
g,/ (i) #m/ (i)
Not credit- Credit-  Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
L) R AR et
EEEE GEAE EREE EEAE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET  TER  TET  TER
One trade debtor with a gross ~ —JEERMEB1E
carrying amount of 6,973,000 8T
HK$6,973,000 (2018: (ZF-NF:
HK$4,152,000) defaulted 4,152,000/ 70) EE4)
and transferred to WERENREERE
credit-impaired 18 2R (60) 7,077 (119) 115
Settlement of trade debtors B RERE
graded as P4 and P5 with 42,176,000 7T
a gross carrying amount of (Z2-N\%F:
HK$42,176,000 35,463,000/ 7T )
(2018: HK$35,463,000) TR EPATPSHY)
B 2RWERER (4,392) - (1,601) -
New trade receivables with REEE
gross carrying amount of 543,397,000/ 7T
HK$543,397,000 (2018: (ZF-NF:
HK$525,191,000) 525,191,00078 7T) £
M8 S ENHIA 2,418 - 5,095 -

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued)

42, TR TR (&)
b. 2REARSENEERRKE(Z)

FERBRNBERNE ()

REIERE — NESEERFAR ()

Gross carrying amount (continued) RmEEE(E)
The following table shows reconciliation of loss TRETCHEAGNEEER
allowances that has been recognised for contract BABHEIER -
assets.
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HRBEE 20FRAGE
BE(RER BE R
FERHE) FERHE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL FHL
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\¥—A—H

— As restated ] 6 - 76
Changes due to financial HA-Z-NF—HF—H

instruments recognised HREMIA

as at 1 January 2018; mitREs :

— Transfer to —ERENREENE

credit-impaired ©) 6 -
— Impairment losses - ERRRESSE
recognised - 4,125 4,125

— Impairment losses reversed - EERRESE (69) - (69)

— Write-offs — HsH - (4,131) (4,131)
New contract assets originated HEAHNANEE 225 - 225
Exchange adjustment Tk 9 - ()
As at 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E

+-F=1+—H 217 - 217
Changes due to financial A-T-n&—A—H

instruments recognised REMIA

as at 1 January 2019: mtEEs :

— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESSE (217) = (217)
New contract assets originated MEENENEE 133 - 133
Exchange adjustment R 2 - @
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF

+-F=1+—H 131 - 131
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, TRET R (%)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRBETE(E)
(continued)
Provision matrix — internal credit rating (continued) PEEEE — NESE EFFAR (&)
Gross carrying amount (continued) RmEEE(E)
The write off of contract assets is due to a customer HREFPEUHEHEES] 8B RAREER
who cancelled a sale order and failed to settle the ZE-NFEMREMAEER
consideration in 2018 and the Group agreed to EMERWIERES - BEE L
waive the rights of receipt. BEMH -
The following table shows reconciliation of loss TRER M E M B IA RS
allowances that has been recognised for other BRERHR -
receivables.
12-month ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
128 A
BHEEFE
(RHER
EERE)
HK$’000
FHT
As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZZFE—NF—H—HB — K& 815
Changes due to financial instruments —E-NF-A—BERR

recognised as at 1 January 2018 T AR EE)

— Impairment losses reversed — B EREEE (804)
New financial assets originated TEENESREE 267
Exchange adjustment b X T (21)
As at 31 December 2018 R_E—NF+=_A=+—H 257
Changes due to financial instruments —E-NF—HA—BER

recognised as at 1 January 2019 I AmEIREE

— Impairment losses reversed — BB ORI EEE (207)
New financial assets originated TEEANSREE 110
Exchange adjustment bE X T E (3)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=—HA=+—H 157
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE —=

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group has available unutilised bank borrowings
facilities of approximately HK$621,049,000 (2018:
HK$394,287,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

—NEFT-A=1+—HLHFE

42, TRET R (%)
b.

THEREENEEREE(E)

REBESRER
REBRBE R KE.
SETERIHRERRE
%ﬁ%&%ﬁFw%%Emm
T URTEENSERTES
WHERERERDNTE - &
BESEAERITEENHRG
T WHERE ST E R4 o

REBEKRBRITERATERY
Ee&RR - R_T—NF+=A
=+—H  AEBEAEREHHE
PABRTEEREDN A
621,049,000/ 7L ( ZZ — \F :
394,287,000 7T) °

TRFAVABRABENRGRE
WHIRR - DARBIAAREBAEBEER
TRHEENKFANEENESR
:315 *Tﬁﬁfﬁ'gﬁﬂmgzﬁ% ° "ﬁ)DJU
= MERERERGRORT
EERIIARERHRBENR - &
ERRRITANREBITREALE
Mo HfbeBMBENZIHA IR
BEHEEEAPET

2019F F3 EREREBEERAF
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash

—NEFT-A=1+—HILHFE

42. €T R (&)
b. ¢RERSENEERBE(E)
REBELEM ()

RIRBENELAERERE °

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating i F SR ABEEFE - QIR
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from SREIEREBAROF R EAN
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. 5o
Liquidity tables MEBER R
Weighted  On demand Total
average orless undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  than 1 year 1-2years over2years cash flows amounts
i RERS ARRE
FiaFI= —£R -EWE BBME MEAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAR AT THEL FET
2019 “E-hE
Trade payables B 5 RNFE - 226,288 - - 226,288 226,288
Other payables HiERTE - 33,218 - - 33,218 33,218
Bank overdrafts BITEX 3.80 2,831 - - 2,831 2,728
Amounts due to non-controling  FERHHTE A B3R/
interests of subsidiaries ERTA - 8,290 - - 8,290 8,290
Bank borrowings RITEE
— floating rate — FEH% 4.46 209,537 - - 209,537 200,587
— fixed rate — EFEF= 4.35 58,306 - - 58,306 55,875
Lease liabilities HERE 4.36 4,440 601 - 5,041 4,905
542,910 601 - 543,511 531,891
2018 “E-)N\F
Trade payables BHRENFE - 229,676 - - 229,676 229,676
Other payables Hth 508 - 55,922 - - 55,922 55,922
Bank overdrafts RITEL 3.78 20,650 - - 20,650 19,897
Amounts due to non-controling  FERHHTE A A1FEE M
interests of subsidiaries =B - 8,154 - - 8,154 8,154
Purchase consideration payable ~ 3tUii EIEFTA
for acquisition YHEERE
— amortised cost - Tﬁfﬁﬂm - 11,150 - - 11,150 11,150
— FVIPL - RRABEHAER - 1,626 - - 1,626 1,626
Bank borrowings RITEEE
— floating rate - SEFE 4.49 585,842 19,593 - 605,435 578,596
— fixed rate - EEf® 4.81 43,482 - - 43,482 41,488
956,502 19,593 - 976095 946,509
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HKS$nil (31 December 2018: HK$51,429,000).
Details are set out in the table below.

42, TR TR (&)
b. 2BEKRETENEERBE(E)

REBESER(EZ)
REEE K (&)
MBREREEERRNEITEE
PIA LB BB AT (R Bk
—FARINGHEERN - R=ZF
—NWE+ZA=+—8  ZER
TEEMNEEAEASSEL(Z
T-NF+=ZA=+—8:
51,429,000 L) - B FF 1B H

R

On demand Total
or less undiscounted Carrying
than 1 year 1-2years over2years cash flows amounts

RERY AFBERE
—FR —EmF BEWME TEHAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET

31 December 2018 —T-)\F

+-A=1+—H 14,061 14,061 24,606 52,728 51,429

2019 F 3 BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2018. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).

42, TRET R (%)

C.

EMTANAABENE

FEBUKEMEERAAEE
FFENERAEENAREE

AEBETEREER TN
FH-A=t—BEBRQIAEEF
B TREHREBOANEEZS
TREBENARBENER(CL
HEMAMBEDNERBAZBIE)

Fair value Valuation technique and Significant
Fair value hierarchy key inputs unobservable input
AREE AREEER HEFERBRBAHE BRATABEGARE
Financial liability
cRAE
Contingent As at 31 December Level 3 Discounted cash flow method was  Probability of achieve

2019: HK$nil
(2018:HK$1,626,000)

Consideration payable

JEN S ARE R=ZF—AF+=ZA F=E
=+—HB:T8x
—ZE-NF:
1,626,000 7T)

Note: A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would not result in a significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the contingent consideration payable,
and vice versa.

The financial liability measured at fair value on Level
3 fair value measurement represents contingent
consideration payable relating to acquisition of
Jiangsu HY-Link Science & Technology Co., Ltd
(“Jiangsu HY”). The change in fair value of financial
liability amounting to HK$1,190,000 in the current
year (2018: HK$482,000) relating to this contingent
consideration payable has been recognised in profit
or loss.

used to capture the present
value of the expected future
economic that will flow out of
the Group arising from the

performance
requirement of 100%
Discount rate of 4.75%
(Note)

contingent consideration, based
on an appropriate discount rate

FRITERSRAREE B RIEE SR R
X ERGEIARE A100%
7 H A E B A TEHR PR & 4.75% (KtE)
RGN 2 IR (E

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

YA« BEIB AR A R0 3T iR R T S B BUR Y
IAREN 2R BEFERET
B RZIR

FZBAANEBEAEFERARE
B2 SR8 EEKETHN
BYFEREER AR ([I&EE
MF ) RN SHAREE - NFE
FREENKARENSHEE
NREEEE1,190,000/8 7T (=
T— \FF : 482,000/87T) Rigz%
TR -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, E@MIT R (%)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. SMIANAAEEFEE)
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value EZEBAAEEITENYE
measurements
Structured
deposits
HERMETER
HK$’000
FHIT
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-N\F—HA—H 7,193
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETK 965,470
Net gain on structured deposits RTINS FE 3,379
Redemption of structured deposits BBl BT K (975,951)
Exchange differences PN =% 91)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=_A=+—H -
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETR 1,020,654
Net gain on structured deposits BT RH N ERFEE 1,896
Redemption of structured deposits ERIABIETR (1,022,550)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hF+=_A=+—H -
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during FERREEASEHE=]E o
this year.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42.
c. Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)
Of the total gains or losses for the period included in
profit or loss, HK$1,896,000 (2018: HK$3,379,000)
relates to structured deposits. Fair value gains or
losses on structured deposits are realised and are
included in “other gains and losses”.

Fair value of financial instruments that are
recorded at amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values. Such fair values have been determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis,
with most significant inputs being the discount rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

43. OPERATING LEASES 43.
The Group as lessee
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

£RTA#)
c. L2BMIAMAAEEIE(E)

F-EAABESENER(E)

TABEMNEARRS R EIEAE
# 01,806,000 t( = T — N
4 :3,379,000/8 0) & B ETF
HEB - EEUNGERNAAER
Wk BEE#H - Wt ATH
bz B R ] o

BBERATHENERTAND
nEE
ARAEZRRNEABHREK
WHERARENEREERS
BEENKEERERA(EEM
B RERAREBEIDREAIRTE
ERARFTERERONETE
REZNEABIES R R
FhHEERRNITEE -

KeEHE

REEEREEA
R-Z—\E+-A=+—A K&
A 7 I A A o R B
AR ARSI -

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FH&T

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF(

5,150
BIEEEMTE) 2,782

7,932
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43. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessor
All of the properties held for rental purposes have
committed lessees for the next 1 and 5 years
respectively.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as

. REHE®
AEEEREEA

FrE#ERERENYED BN ARKA
F NS FEATAEM o

HEMSEEKEENZDT

follows:
2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FHT
Within one year —FR 2,015
In the second year B F 1,341
In the third year F=4F 1,341
In the fourth year FINF 1,341
In the fifth year FRF 1,341
After five years AFi& 1,341
8,720

The Group had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

AEED T REFERE A

HPETZAK

2018

—N\F
HK$’000

TAET

Within one year —$ A
In the second to fifth year inclusive TFEEERF(E

SEEERED)

654
110

764

2019FFHf EHRE

IR AR AT
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44.

45.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44. EREIE
2019 2018
—E-RAE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Capital expenditure in respect of the #RUEME  BE R
acquisition of property, plant and RIERCETHERR
equipment contracted for but not e M BmREEN
provided in the consolidated BEARMAX
financial statements 95,515 67,062

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4 March
2009 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, employees, customer or supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group, consultant,
adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or its members (the “Eligible Participants”), and have
expired on 4 March 2019. Under the Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to Eligible
Participants to subscribe for shares in the Company.

45.

UBRHRERNRORS
A2 AR A A B R A A B

AREERERE (TRHE D RER =
ZENF=AWBRBHRBERER
W ITBEEMRAES EE TP
SRR EmERE T AKBEERAIKE
NEEHIER - B A KR
TRABHAANEELEKE R FR
HFEH AR ENER(AE
KL EEDELERD YER=-F
—NFE=ZAMBER - RIFFHE > K
REAEZARAEERSEERBBR
- URBBEARR ©
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 45. LRGP AEBRSRORS (&)

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. However, the total maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Options
may be exercised at any time for a period determined by
its directors which shall not be later than the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the date
of grant. The exercise price of the share options must be
at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of an ordinary
share on the date of grant; (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
share options; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
share options had been granted and the Company had
no share options outstanding at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

RRBRRAFEHBRETE(F)

EAREARBIRREFHERBERT -
RIFFT 8 AT RE R ) BB A 0 A A X
MEBNSEARNAFEREHNE
TATRDEV10% © AT - BEITRE S
RITEBRERAIERTORD &S
BBTNSEBAARRR TR ETRA
30% ° fil[Al — R AR R EBBIREIE
VHATEFTARESENEABE
ATEHH BRI 1218 A HE
HBEAARBEMNRENEZETRG
0.1% & A2 B (AR X P IR i B 28
BHNERRERMBALQA RS
{8 /R £ %) 8 %1 5,000,000 7T * A
EARBRAE LEUSBRILAE -

REmBREANELARRKR28BR
BR  ARAAXNEEREEHK1E
TLe BRER RNESETE N HREER
T ETNBERNERREASTE
FHIER -BRETEEARN TR
=E ((RHEHEBRROEE  6)R
RO BIE R BB rE B mERA
BARBRAD HOUTE ¢ K (i) B IR
HE AT REER S AR EHRE
RFITMA DB R B F W THE

HE_Z-—NFrk=-_FT—\F+=A
—+t—BLtFE @MERLHERE
MARBNRZF-NFR=_FT—N\F
+ZA=+—BINERRITERERRAEE -
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46. PLEDGE OF OR RESTRICTIONS ON 46.
ASSETS
Pledge of assets
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the assets pledged by the Group to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group are as follow:

B E KPR

EEERR
RBERK - AEEEBAERET
AEENRITEENEEREENT

2019 2018

—E-hEFE  —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Bank deposits RITIFR 9,476 11,250

Restrictions on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately
HK$4,905,000 are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$4,853,000 as at 31
December 2019. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor and the relevant
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flow from financing

47.

activities.

METBELRENHEER

TRAFIAEERBEEDFAELR
EOEE . DERLRERLEH -
BEEDHRELEBEARSRAFKR
ReRUEREBNELRERER
SR AREEB LR RNEE -

Interest
payable
Amounts (included in
due to non- other
controlling Purchase payable
interests of Bank  Dividends consideration Lease and
subsidiaries  borrowings payables payables liabilities accruals) Total
EAFE
AT K (FrAEft
DAFER A EAFRER
BHETE RITEE ERRE BERE HEBE  EIER) EHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT FAT AR TAT FAT AR
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F—A—-H 4,983 678,166 - 22,848 - 65 706,062
Financing cash flow (Note) BERST () 3,356 (63,278) (223,825) (6,186) - - (279,933)
Finance costs BVERK - - - - - 22,776 22,776
Interest paid BHFIE - - - - - (24,417) (24,417)
Consideration for acquisition of W —EHEAR
non-controlling interest of a FERERHKE
subsidiary - - - 6,186 - - 6,186
Consideration for acquisition - FEKE-H
a subsidiary in previous year WERRMKE - - - (10,244) - - (10,244)
Dividends declared BERRE - - 223,825 - - - 223,825
Changes in fair value NELEE -2 - - - 482 - - 482
Exchange difference ERESR (185) (4,804) - (310) - 2,765 (2,534)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+-A=1+-H 8,154 620,084 - 12,776 - 1,189 642,203
Adjustment upon application of [EREABREER
HKFRS 16 F 169k (EHEEE - - - - 9,880 - 9,880
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hnE—F—H 8,154 620,084 - 12,776 9,880 1,189 652,083
Financing cash flow (Note) BERST (M) 292 (362,342) (2,574) (15,033) (4,152) = (383,809)
Consideration for acquisition of g — B AR
non-controlling interest of a FERERDONRE
subsidiary - - - 3,618 - - 3,618
Changes in fair value PREEE - - = (1,190) = = (1,190)
New lease contracts HEERN - - - - 864 - 864
Early termination of lease contracts ~ 1ZAIAILTAEAH) - - - - (1,667) - (1,667)
Finance costs BERA - - - - 287 19,391 19,678
Interest paid ERFE - - - - (287) (19,532) (19,819)
Dividends declared BERKS - - 2,574 - - - 2,574
Exchange difference EHZER (156) (1,280) - (17) (20) (910) (2,537)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-1E
+-A=1+-H 8,290 256,462 - - 4,905 138 269,795
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 47. st 528 fiEL B ENEE @)

48.

49.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Note: The cash flows represent (i) the proceeds from and repayment of
bank borrowings; (ii) payment of dividends; (jii) repayment to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries; (iv) consideration paid for
acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary; (v)
consideration paid for acquisition of a subsidiary in previous year
and (vi) repayments of leases liabilities.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into a new lease
agreement for the use of leased properties for 3 years.
On the lease commencement, the Group recognised
HK$864,000 of right-of-use asset and HK$864,000 lease
liability.

During the year, there were reduction to right-of-use
assets of HK$1,647,000 and lease liabilities of
HK$1,667,000 due to certain contracts were early
terminated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties:

(@) Transactions with related company
The Group had the following significant transactions
with related party during the year:

48.

49,

BEE - BEMIBORITEBENATSRIBERER © (i)
IRAS RS, (i) R B8 X B SRR AR A s B 3K
(iv) e — I BT BB A RIRRSMN AN B O 2
MHRE: v E—FERBE—RHEARN
ENRE: RMBEESEER -

BEXEBAERS

FR AEBEREAREMET LA
H=FmHEEH® - REERBE -
7N 5 B 1 SR A B & 864,000 78 7T
N E & {&864,0008 T °

FR-ARETEHMRANKL £

77T 5 1,667,00078 7T ©

BRELRZ
AR A M ISR E IO FTREES
REBREET NS MEHMT

() HBREATNXRS
RAFEAR » REBHET NIE
REEZTRS -

2019 2018
—E-NEF —FE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Company controlled by a HAAT —BESEF
director of the Company: BAF :
Purchase of printing and BRI RS
packing machineries 10,230 3,658
An associate: — e AT
Sales of printing and manufacturing $56 ENffl & B &8 5 2%
cigarette packages and related KAEEM R
materials 56,263 47,083
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 49. BERR 5 (#)

(b) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the (b) HEFEFWNEBRRERE VBRI
consolidated statement of financial position and in R LM FE29WEE - e - BHEE
note 29. In addition, deposits amounting to BYWE  BEMEER—HBHEAE
HK$5,006,000 (2018: HK$9,422,000) were paid to RAESEFIMNEE S ZTHE
a related party controlled by a director of the % 5,006,000 (= ZF— \F :
Company for purchase of property, plant and 9,422,000 7T) B st A [E S
equipment, which is included in “Rental and other e REMEE] -

deposits paid”.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) EEEBAEMNS
The remuneration of directors and other members RAFE EEREMEIEZER
of key management during the year was as follows: AEBBNEIT :
2019 2018
—E-hFE  ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Short-term benefits HRE A 6,866 6,708
Contribution to retirement RIRFE ST &I 3K
benefits schemes 143 138
7,009 6,846
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERFETHRABNME B
determined by the remuneration committee having MZE B g REAKRRRTS
regard to the performance of individuals and market BEIBEFE o
trends.
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50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has received a Notice of Arbitration from Shenzhen Court
of International Arbitration that Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration has accepted the application (the
“Application”) for arbitration filed by an ex-staff of a
subsidiary of the Company (the “Claimant”). According to
the Application, the Claimant requests for the payment
of: (i) a fund raising reward of about HK$108.9 million and
the related overdue interest since April 2008; (i) a service
fee of RMB2.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,305,000) and the related overdue interest since
July 2007; (iii) legal fees incurred of about HK$47.0 million
and RMBO0.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,037,000); and (iv) arbitration fee, in connection with
an appointment contract and another agreement entered
into between, among other party, a subsidiary of the
Company and the Claimant in April 2005.

The directors of the Company consider that all allegations
in the Application are unfounded and without merits. In
this regard, the Group has categorically defended and
challenged all the claims by the Claimant during the
judicial process. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that the Group has an
obligation to settle the claims based on the legal advice
and no provision is considered to be recognised to the
consolidated financial statements accordingly.
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0. HARERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

51. AR RMEQRFR

R=Z-AFR-B—\F+=A
=t+—R  ARAKBRAFENT :

Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/

Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

BRAREH
R/ EMEL/ FAABERMREBRITRE/ BREZERK/
WERARERE RS REEZRRERELH SRE FEER
Directly Indirectly
B G
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE ZB-N\F ZE-hE ZE-N\F
% % % %

Brilliant Circle Management Limited  British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$200  Investment holding
(EMERBRRR) RERUES 200%T  REEK

Brilliant Circle Group British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EERTBE 121 RARR
(BHEBERERAR)

Brilliant Circle Printing & British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$10,000  Investment holding
Packaging Limited EBRETEE 10000FT  REZR
(BBORIREERAR)

Union Virtue International Limited British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 USS$1  Investment holding
(AEERERRR) RERUES 15T REBR

Brilliant Circle Development Limited ~ Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$2,000,000  Investment holding
(BBEEARAR) BE 2,000,000 REER

Champion League Investment British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERAES 100%n REER
(BERERRBRAR)

Sanbond Investment Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100  Investment holding
(HEREERANA) 95 1008 REER

HEeE I MRNRERAR! PRC - - 100.00 100.00 US$12,461,000  Printing of cigarette
(Bengbu Jinhuangshan F 12,461,0007C  packages printing of
Rotogravure Printing packages and
Company Limited) decoration matter

research and
development on
printing technology
BEAEIR  a%
SR ENR] T BRI DA R
DRI HR S B b

FYIEBERIBRAR" PRC - - 100.00 100.00 HK$9,600,000  Investment holding

(Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited) & 9,600,000 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  51. KX RIfi B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/
Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
BRTREY
R/ EMERL/ ARABEEMREBRITRE/ BREZERLK/
WEAR AR EEHY RS RRERELA gRRA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
E# Cf:d
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-\F ZE-hFE ZE-N\F
% % % %
Kecal* PRC - - 100.00 99.49  RMB194,720,000  Printing of cigarette
B H AR 194,720,0007T  packages printing of
packages and
decoration matter
research and
development on
printing technology
BEAEIR  £%
SBENRI T ELRI DA R
IR AR R %
ZEeREVERRBRAR" PRC - - 100.00 100.00 1S$3,000,000  Printing of cigarette
(Xiangyang Jinfeinuan Colour # 3,000000%7T  packages
Packing Co., Ltd) MR EDE
ZTAT PRC - - 100.00 100.00 US$1,000,000  Manufacturing of
RELHE 3 1,000000%7T  laminated paper
HEESH
Giant Sino Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 60.00 60.00 40.00 40.00 US$100.00  Investment holding
(FEREFRRA) RERUES 100.00%7m  REER
Emperor Great Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$100.00  Investment holding
(BBREBRAR) RERUEE 100.00%L HEER
Fortune Chaser Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100.00  Investment holding
(RIEBRAR) B 1000087 REER
Forever Youth limited British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$100.00  Investment holding
(FEBRAT) EBRAHE 100005 BEER
Right Tech (China) Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$1  Investment holding
(BZ(hE)BRAR) B 1B REBR
Jiangsu HY* PRC - - 70.00 70.00 RMB16,800,000  Sales of RFID products
TEBENF FE AE# 16,800,000 SHESHEEAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —ZL—NF+_A=T—HIEFE

51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  51. KX R B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/

Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

BRIREY
R/ EmEL/ ARABEEMREBRITRE/ BREBRE/
HEARER EE 3 b RAEERREELH gRRA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
E# &
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NFE ZE-\F ZE-NF ZT)N\F
% % % %

HEBREREARDA" PRC - - 100.00 100.00  RMB50,000,000  Investment holding
(Zhuhai Baozhuangbao HE AR¥50,00000070 HEER
Investment Co., Ltd.)

THeHENHRRERAR PRC - - 100.00 10000  RMB125,000,000  Sales of RFID products
(Jiangsu Jinxunda 10T HE AR HESIEHEAER
Technology Co., Ltd.) 125,000,0007C

Jinshengcai* PRC - - 100.00 100.00 RMB28,350,000  Manufacturing of paper

Evin 2 HE AE28,350,0007C  packaging materials

HERBRME

FYTEBET R ERNR PRC - - 100.00 - RMB10,000,000  Sales of RFID products
BRAR E AR¥10,0000007T HESHERAER
(Shenzhen Jinlianda Intelligent
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.)

R ERBENEERARY PRC - - 100.00 - RMB840,000  Trading of printing of

HE AR®840,0007c  cigarette packages
EEAXORZES

* Company incorporated as a sino-foreign equity. * ARIFMAR ARINEERE -

# Company established as foreign invested limited liability # REIKIL BINEREBR AT ©

company.

# Limited liability company established in the PRC. ”‘* R BI I ARQR -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities R ERRIAFEEMER - B8

at the end of the reporting period or at any time during MEAREITEMNEEES -

the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 — L —NF+_A=T—HIEFE

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. AR B H AR K B R K

AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-hEFE  —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A TR RS 1,174,590 1,197,858
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 4,001 -
Rental deposit HE*Ze 664 -
1,179,255 1,197,858
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Hib el 18 172 843
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 440,486 229,680
Bank balances and cash IRITEB MRS 4,657 69,972
445,315 300,495
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b TR R FEET & = 1,240
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL NGB 217,918 119,199
Bank borrowings RITEE 195,000 488,837
Bank overdraft RITEX 2,728 19,897
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,053 -
419,699 629,173
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE 25,616 (328,678)
Total assets less current liabilities EELZLERAHERE 1,204,871 869,180
Non-current liability kREBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE - 18,750
Net assets EEZE 1,204,871 850,430
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital B& 7R 7,839 7,839
Reserves & 1,197,032 842,591
1,204,871 850,430
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (continued)

52, AN T MBI K FREEHRER @)

Movement in the Company’s reserves RARREES
Dividend Share Other Exchange Retained
reserve premium reserves reserves profits Total
BRERE RORE HEE ERXRE [KREER st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$S000 HK$000 HK$000
T T FET FET FHAT FAT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\5F
—HA—H - 4,936,913 (4,185,977) (23,161) 336,326 1,064,101
Profit and total FERFRER
comprehensive income Y25 4858
for the year - - - (47,305) 25,700 (21,605)
Dividends recognised ERAEDRARE
as distribution - - - - (199,905)  (199,905)
At 31 December 2018~ R=Z—/)\4F
+=ZA=+—H - 4,936,913 (4,185,977) (70,466) 162,121 842,591
Profit and total FERH R
comprehensive income 2 4E%E
for the year - - - (19,451) 373,892 354,441
Final dividends for 2019  —F—h&FE# K
proposed (note16) 8 (FiTEE 16) 299,936 - - - (299,936) -
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF
+-A=+—H 299,936 4,936,913 (4,185,977)  (89,917) 236,077 1,197,032
Note: The Company has applied HKFRS 16 since 1 January 2019 in Mz : ARQXFTE_ZE—NF— A —BHIBEHN

accordance with transitional provision stated in note 2. Lease
liabilities amounted to HK$7,950,000 were recognised on initial
application of HKFRS 16, of which HK$7,950,000 recognised as

right-of-use assets for own use.

FE2FTIBEIR SRR BB RS
AIZE16%% - REXERB A KRS %
A1 25 16557 5 /E R FH & & 157,950,000 7%
70 H 7,950,000 TR AEE B
RREE -
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53. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of a novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) in
mainland China and the subsequent quarantine measures
imposed by the mainland Chinese government in early
2020 have certain impact on the business operations of
the Group and its associates, as the main operations of
the Group and its associates are located in mainland
China. The Group’s major subsidiaries and one of the
associates had to stop their manufacturing activities
since early February 2020 due to mandatory government
quarantine measures in an effort to contain the spread of
the COVID-19. The Group’s major subsidiaries and the
associate have resumed the normal business operation
at the middle of February 2020.

The Group is taking actions to minimise the impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak to its business operation. The Group
adopted precautionary measures to protect its workplace
from COVID-19. Besides, the Group is also closely
communicating with the business partners including the
Group’s customers and suppliers in order to manage the
schedules on the planning of sales and purchases. As
the situation remains fluid as at the date these financial
statements are authorised for issue, the directors of the
Company considered that the financial effects of the
COVID-19 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements cannot be reasonably estimated. The actual
financial effects will be reflected in the Group’s future
financial statements.
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3. REHRER
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Five year financial summary

hEHBEBRE

(A) RESULTS

(A) ¥4&

For the year ended 31 December

BETZA=+-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
-0 ZTRE ZT+tF T\ ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET THT TET TEr
(Restated)
(lE5)
Revenue 2% 1494961 1,407,209 1265515 1,366,753 1,495,833
Operating profit RERF 297,851 270,508 145,770 77,389 191,866
Gain on disposal of HENBARM
subsidiaries s - - - 91,681 -
Share of profit of associates kB2 A &R A 178,625 86,429 47,334 51,669 41,751
Share of profit (loss) of a NME—REELE
joint venture il (E518) - 57 (274) 623 (930)
Profit before taxation B AR A 476,476 356,994 192,830 221,362 232,687
Taxation A (79,796) (69,760) (50,023) (46,930) (55,801)
Profit for the year from SECEET
continuing operations R EE RN 396,680 287,234 142,807 174,432 176,886
Loss for the year from BRI EER
discontinued operations MEEEE (6,078) - - - -
Attributable to: FE1E -
Owners of the Company /NGIE PN 386,372 285,827 138,025 169,383 175,886
Non-controlling interests IR RIS 4,230 1,407 4,782 5,049 1,000
390,602 287,234 142,807 174,432 176,886
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A EHBERE

(B) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (B) EEREE

At 31 December

R+=B=1+—8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF ZBF —F+tf T\ ZE-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET FET TET TR

TOTAL ASSETS EEAE 4,368,408 4,158,124 4,198,506 3,934,962 3,647,153
TOTAL LIABILITIES REAE (1,385,294) (1,282,964) (1,217,996) (1,136,361)  (720,977)

2,983,114 2,875,160 2,980,510 2,798,601 2,926,176

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO: I\ T A T FE{L % !

Owners of the Company ADFERA 2,930,460 2,828,968 2,917,632 2,763,663 2,904,301
Non-controlling interests FEERER 52,654 46,192 62,878 34,938 21,875

2,983,114 2,875,160 2,980,510 2,798,601 2,926,176

Note: The comparative figures are not restated on application of Mzt . BERNERTAMBEREREREIN -
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 for the first time in the year ended 31 HE-_Z-—N\F+-A=+—RHLLFE
December 2018 and HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current BRERBEENGREERE 155 LA
year. FEEREREAMBREEIE 165

R B LR -
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